City of Rockport, Texas

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Prepared by

Patty Howard, Finance Director



City of Rockport, Texas
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For The Year Ended September 30, 2013

Page Exhibit/Table

TABLE OF CONTENTS
INTRODUCTORY SECTION ‘
Letter of Transimitlal.........ccoo et e i
GFOA Certificate of AChIEVEMENT..... 1 oot i
Organizational Chart ... .. ..ottt eb et fii
List of Principal Officials........oooei i iv
FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent AUGILOI'S REPOM.......co it 1
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Required Supplementary information)................ 4

Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements;

Statement of Net Position..........oo e 13
Statement of ACHVItIES.......ooo 14
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet - Governmental FUNAS........ooocv i 16
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Posilion..............oco 18
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Governmental FUNdS........c.coorie v 19
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities................. 21
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - General Fund..........ccooicieiinnne 22
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary FURAS. ... 23
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Fund Net Position - Proprietary Funds..........cccoooocnininvni e, 25
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds............c.coooiion, 27
Notes to the Financial Statements ..........ccoccviiiiiiinn e, 28
Combining Statements and Budgetary Comparison Schedules as Supplementary Information:
Combining Balance Sheet - All Nonmajor Governmental Funds.............cccocooeeeniicnnnn 48
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances - All Nonmajor Governmental FUnds..............c....coinnn, 49

Special Revenue Funds:

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds.....................cooo 50
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds..............ccooi i, 54

Budgetary Comparison Schedules:

Utility Bill SUFCREIGE. ....ceovveviiiieic et 58
City/County Dispatch Service..........ccoc i U UUUUSUUUURTOU 59

Exhibit A-1
Exhibit A-2

Exhibit A-3
Exhibit A-4
Exhibit A-5
Exhibit A-6

Exhibit A-7
Exhibit A-8

Exhibit A-9
Exhibit A-10

Exhibit B-1

Exhibit B-2

Exhibit B-3

Exhibit B-4

Exhibit B-5
Exhibit B-6



City of Rockport, Texas
Comprehensive Annual Financia! Report
For The Year Ended September 30, 2013

Exhibit/Table

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
HotelfMotel Occupancy TaxX FUNG......coooiiniin et 60
Municipal Court Security & Technology Fund.........ccooeeivii e 61
Debt Service Funds:
Budgetary Comparison Schedule;
Dbt SBIVICE FUNG. ..ottt ear e 62
Capital Projects Funds:
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Capital Projecis Funds........ccccvvceeeeen e, 63
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances - Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds............ ettt ———— 65
Enterprise Funds:
Combining Statement of Net Position - Nonmajor Enterprise Funds.......................... 67
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Fund Net Position - Nonmajor Enterprise FUNds. ..o cinnncconenncone, 68
Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Nonmajor Enterprise Funds...............cccooe 69
STATISTICAL SECTION
Net Position by COMPONBNL.... ..o e e e se e se e sne s s res s emee e rrs 72
Expenses, Program Revenues, and Net (Expense)/Revenue............ccovcvicieiccn e, 73
General Revenues and Total Change in Net Position...............cco v 74
Fund Balances of Governmental FUNGS........ccooiiec e i 75
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmenial Funds...........ccoicn i, 78
Tax Revenues by Source, Govarnmantal Funds. ... 77
Assessed Value and Eslimated Actual Value of Taxable Property.................... 78
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates..........covniiiiin i 79
Principal Property TA)X Payers. ... e e erinserireer v cee e sres s remees s nbebe s 80
Property Tax Levies and COlleCHONS... ...t 81
Ratios of OQutstanding Debt by Type.......ccovervincin, S OO PP SOOI 82
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding. ... 83
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt...........cccoovi 84
Legal Debt Margin Information... ..o 85
Pledged-Revenue COVEIAgE. ... .. et entcarre e rin s s ssrae et et a e e ninens 86
Demographic and Economic Statistios......oooeer e, 87
PrINCIPA] ERMIPIOYEIS... et viccres et st et 88
Full-Time-Equivalent Employees by FUnction/Program.............ccoccecviin e 89
Operating Indicators By FUNction/Program.........cccv i, 90
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Programi................cii 91
Insurance in Force 92
Selected Utility Fund Data 93

Exhibit B-7
Exhibit B-8

Exhibit B-9

Exhibit B-10

Exhibit B-11

Exhibit B-12

Exhibit B-13
Exhibit B-14

Table C-1
Table C-2
Table C-3
Table C-4
Table C-5
Table C-6
Table C-7
Table C-8
Table C-9
Table C-10
Table C-11
Table C-12
Table C-13
Tahle C-14
Table C-16
Table C-16
Table C-17
Table C-18
Table C-19
Table C-20
Table C-21
Table C-22




City of Rockport, Texas
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For The Year Ended September 30, 2013

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page Exhibit/Table

SINGLE AUDIT SECTION

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed

in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.........c.covveeiiiivciciiinin o, 94
Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal
Control over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133.......ovieinine, 96
Schedule of Findings and Questionad COstS ... 98
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings.......c.cocoriiiiiii, 99
COITactive ACLON PRN...... oot e e st s s ae s e ran e s ba e e ey s it 100
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal AWards ... 101 Exhibit D-1

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal AWards...........cococveenionninicnnns 102



Introductory Section



www.cityofrockport.com

CITY HALL
622 E. Market Street
Rockport, TX 78382

Mayor & City Council
City Manager
City Secretary
Finance Office
Munlcipal Court
Utillty Customer Service
Phone: 361-71%9-2213
Fax: 361-790-5966 &
361-790-1165

SERVYICE CENTER
2751 SH 35 Bypass
Rockport, TX 78382

Buitding Department
Bullding, Inspections,
Permits & Code Enforcement
Phone: 361.790.1125
Fax: 361-729.6476
Inspectlon Request Line:
361-790-1177

Public Works Department
Building Maintenance
Environmental
Fleet Maintenance
Natural Gas
Streets & Drainage
Water & Wastewater Utility
Fax: 361-729-7672

BAY EDUCATION CENTER
Parks Department
Administration
121 Seabreeze
Rockport, TX 78382
Phone: 361-727-2158
or
361-790-1136
Fax: 361-727-9393
Community Aguatic Park
and Skate Park
200} Stadlum Drive
Rockport, TX 78382
Phonet 361.727-9989

PUBLIC SAFETY CENTER
Polfce Department
714 E. Concho Streat
Rockport, TX 78382
Administration
Communications
Crimlinal Investigation Division
Patrol Diviston
Phone: 361-71%-111H1
Fax: 3461-790-3461

February 7, 2014

The Honorable Mayor, City Council and City Manager
City of Rockport, Texas

The Comprchensive Annual Financial Report of the City of
Rockport, Texas for the year ended September 30, 2013, is submitted.
This report was prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles on a basis consistent with the prior year. The
preparation of the annual financial report and all financial information in
the report is the responsibility of the City. The scope of the independent
auditor’s examination is to render an opinion on the financial information
in the Annual Financial Report. Complete details concerning the City’s
fiscal year activities and related costs are presented in the enclosed
narratives and financial statements.

This Letter of Transmittal and the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis are management’s opportunity to communicate aspects of the
overall financial condition, details of which are frequently obscured or
submerged in financial statements, schedules, and/or tables. The attached
organizational chart provides a pictograph of the lines of authority and
responsibility with the system.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The Charter of the City of Rockport requires that the City Council
appoint certified public accountants, who will be responsible to the
Council, to perform an independent audit of all funds and group of
accounts of the City on an annual basis. The firm of Michael Arnold
P.L.L.C. was selected by the Council to perform this function. Generally
accepted auditing standards and the standards set forth in the General
Accounting Office’s Government Auditing Standards were used by the
auditors in conducting the engagement. The auditors’ report on the basic
financial statements and combining and individual fund statements and
schedules is included in the financial section of this report.




MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

The report is published to provide to the City Council, to our citizens, and to
representatives of financial institutions and other interested persons, detailed information
concerning the financial condition of the City government. To that end, the report has been
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB),

The City’s accounting system has been designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance regarding:

* The safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and

¢ The reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining
accountability of assets.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and the evaluation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgment by management. All internal control evaluations occur within the
above framework.

GOVERNING BODY

The City was incorporated on May 29, 1871 under the laws of the State of Texas and
adopted the Council-Manager form of government on April 12, 1983. The City Council is
composed of the Mayor and four council members. The City Council and Mayor are
responsible for enacting ordinances, resolutions, and regulations governing the City,
appointing members of various statutory and advisory boards and the City Manager, City
Secretary, City Attorney, Municipal Judge and Alternate Municipal Judge. As chicl
administrative officer, the City Manager is responsible for enforcement of laws and
ordinances and appoints and supervises the heads of departments of the City Organization.

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION

The Department of Finance operates under the direction of the Finance Director, who
is appointed by the City Manager; with the consensus of the City Council. Activities of the
Department of Finance are control of, custody and disbursement of City funds. Other
activities of the department include risk management, payroll, purchasing, computer
management and the preparation of the annual budget and interim and annual financial
reports.



CITY OF ROCKPORT AND ITS SERVICES

Services provided by the City under the general governmental functions inciude
police, street maintenance, public improvements, planning and zoning, engineering, traffic
control, parks operation and maintenance, code enforcement, building permits, floodplain
management, building, plumbing, electrical inspections and general and administrative
services. A private firm provides solid waste collection and disposal services under a
contract with the City. In addition, water, natural gas, and sewer, and the community aquatic
park services are provided under an Enterprise Fund concept, with user charges set by the
City Council to ensure adequate coverage of operating expenses and payments on
outstanding debt.

The Community Aquatic Park is considered to be a blended component unit of the
City. The City acts as the “managing partner” of the County wide governmental “joint
venture” consisting of the City of Rockport, Aransas County, and the Town of Fulton.
Policy is set by a Swimming Pool Operations committee which consists of a voting member
from the city and county, plus a citizen member of the City Parks Board and the Director of
Parks and Leisure Services.

The City of Rockport and Aransas County entered into an Interlocal Agreement
creating the City/County Communications Center, combining dispatch services, The
agreement created a Dispatching Services Board consisting of one representative from each
entity and the Dispatch Administrator.

Additional Interlocal Agreements between the City of Rockport and Aransas County
help to eliminate the duplication of services, and help reduce costs for both entities. These
include Animal Control Services, Jail and Detention Services, Road Construction and
Maintenance within the city limits of Rockport, Septic System Inspections, Sanitation
Services and Tax Collection.

A countywide Geographic Information System (GIS) was created with the City of
Rockport, Aransas County and Aransas County Appraisal District. Each entity will be
responsible for the creation and maintenance of their own overlays.

The Aransas County and City of Rockport Public Safety Center completed a joint
law enforcement office building housing the Rockport Police Department and the Aransas
County Sheriff’s Office. This is another example of the City and County joining together to
save taxpayers dollars. Created by an Interlocal Agreement, the venture is a 50/50 split
between the City of Rockport and Aransas County for all maintenance and expenses refated
to the Public Safety Center.
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On May 30, 2008 the City purchased Aransas Natural Gas Company, a privately
owned natural gas company located in Rockport. The Natural Gas Division provides service
to Rockport, the Town of Fulton and Aransas County as far north as Lamar. (See more in the
Management, Discussion and Analysis section)

BUDGETING

In accordance with the City Charter, on or before the first regular scheduled meeting
in August, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed budget and budget
message for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1. The proposed budget shall
contain the budget message prepared by the City Manager, detailing estimates of all revenue
and expenditures, debt requirements, and a draft of the budget ordinance. The City Council
shall review the proposed budget and make any appropriate changes prior to publishing the
final budget.

The budget message explains the budget in fiscal terms and in terms of the work
submitted with the budget. It outlines the proposed financial programs of the City for the
ensuing fiscal year, the capital program, and capital projects for the budget year. The budget
message will describe the important features of the budget and indicate any major changes
from the current year in financial policies, expenditures and revenues including the reasons
for such changes.

The budget shall provide a complete financial plan of all City funds and activities
and shall be in such form as the City Manager deems desirable or the City Council may
require. The detailed line item budget is presented for administrative control. It shail be
arranged to depict proposed expenditures and the means of financing them for the upcoming
year, along with comparative figures for actual and budget income and expenditure for the
preceding fiscal year; budgeted and estimated income and expenditure for the cutrent fiscal
year; and actual income and expenditure of the current year projected to year estimates for
the current years.

The budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance on or before
September 27. Please refer to Note “A” in Notes to the Financial Statements fot more detail
on budgets and budgetary accounting.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The City of Rockport is the county seat for Aransas County and is located 30 miles
northeast of Corpus Christi. There are approximately 15.0 square miles of land within the
City’s corporate boundary.
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ECONOMIC TRENDS

Ranked in The 100 Best Small Art Towns of America, and recognized among the top
retirement spots in the nation by America’s Best Places to Retire, Rockport is a wonderful
place to live and visit alike. Gulfscapes Magazine’s “2011 Readers Choice Best Gulf Coast
Towns” listed Rockport number four in the top ten. In 2009 Rockport was hailed as a
coastal dream town by Coasfal Living Magazine. Better Homes and Gardens in its April
2007 issue listed Rockport-Fulton the number five destination as a “long weekend hotspot”
for spring migration bird watching. Texas Meetings and Events list Rockport-Fulton as a
great Gulf Coast getaway for a business meeting, board meeting, etc. The Today in America
television show, hosted by Terry Bradshaw featured Rockport and Fulion as one of the “Best
Places to Live and  Visit.” The segment can be found at
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Pu6_cqu2QaY .

Property values in the City of Rockport increased from $538,391,491 in 2000 to
$1,436,351,959 in 2013, This can be attributed to the annexation of several areas, increased
property values, as well as, the increase in development within the City.

Permits for single family homes have increased from approximately 66 annually to
78 in 2013, largely due to the economic conditions of the country realizing a slight
improvement. Rockport is made up largely of second homes, with the slight growth in the
market these home starts have increased. The population of Rockport has grown by 27% in
the last ten (10) years going from 7,385 in the U.S. Census Bureau 2000 Census to 9357 as

of 2011.

Sales tax revenues have increased from $1,117,080 in 2000 to $2,039,088 in 2013.
This is an 83% increase in sales tax revenues over a twelve (12) year period. Winter Texans
and summer visitors have helped in the increase of sales tax.

The City has taken several steps in recent years to enhance the quality of life for the
citizens of Rockport. In the past few years the City has purchased 50 acres of land to keep as
green space and several acres behind the Memorial Park for expansion of that park in the
future. The Hike and Bike Trail that was partially funded by a TxDOT grant has been
completed and very well utilized for the Tule Park. A grant from Texas Department of
Agriculture {Texas Yes) helped complete a beautification project on Austin Streel. The
project converted the four lane boulevard to a two lane street with diagonal parking, which
provides greater pedestrian and handicapped street crossing safety.



MAJOR INITIATIVES

The City’s staff, following specific directives of the City Council and the City Manager,
has been involved in a variety of projects throughout the year. These projects reflect the
City’s commitment of ensuring that its citizens are able to live and work in a highly
desirable community and include the following:

Anoxic Tank - In response to a study showing that nitrates were coniributing to

- lower water quality in Little Bay, construction was begun on a $785,000 anoxic tank

at the wastewater treatment plant. The anoxic tank is designed to remove significant
amounts of nitrates from the plant’s effluent, which flows down the Tule Creek and
into Liftle Bay. The tank is substantially complete and is fully operational as of the
end of September, 2012,

Public Service Center — Construction of a new $3,750,000 Public Service Center
began in 2011 and is complete, including construction of out buildings. Public
Works and Building and Development relocated to the facility in January, 2013.
Although not submitted as a LEED project, there are many LEED features
incorporated into the design. These design features are expected to result in superior
energy efficiency and lower operating and maintenance costs. Located at one of the
highest points on Live Oak peninsula, the facility was also designed 1o serve as a
base of operations in the event of a catastrophic event. In an emergency it can slecp
and feed over 100 responders, has an electrical generator to serve the entire building,
provide water and sewer service, and can also serve as a back-up communications
center.

Tule Hike and Bike Trail — In June 1999 the City was awarded a $648,023 Statewide
Transportation Enhancement Program grant from the Texas Department of
Transportation for construction of the one-mile long Tule Hike and Bike Trail.
Delayed primarily by right-of-way acquisition issues and mandated changes in
design criteria, the project began construction in January, 2012 and was completed
by the end of November, 2012. This is a significant addition to the City’s park
facilities and will link Memorial Park to Highway 35 business and ultimately to the
trails planned by Aransas Pathways.

Water Tower — Construction of $2,045,000 water tower was completed and
operational in April, 2012. The tower is located adjacent to the Public Service
Center and adds one million gallon in storage and also will provide the Public
Service Center with a water source in the event the facility has to be used as an
emergency operations center and the distribution system is offline.
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BUDGET AS COMPARED TO ACTUAL

General Government Fund Revenues — Budget as Compared to Actual

The General Government Fund Revenues are budgeted based on historical
information and the current economic climate of the City. For a detailed comparison of
actual General Governmental Fund revenues with budget amounts, see “Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget (Non-GAAP
Budgetary Basis) and Actual — All Governmental Fund Types and Governmental
Expendable Trust Funds: in the financial section of this report (Exhibit B-1).

General Governmental Fund Expenditures — Budeet as Compared to Actual

The proposed expenditures in the General Governmental Funds are budgeted based
on historical demand for services and inflationary trends, For a detaifed comparison of
actual General Governmental fund Expendifures with budgeted amounts, see “Combined
State or Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget (GAAP Basis) and
Actual — All Government Fund Types and Governmental Expendable Trust Funds” in the
financial section of this report (Exhibit B-1).

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

The City had no fiduciary funds at September 30, 2013,

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The Proprietary Funds are those funds that are self-supporting. The Proprietary
Funds of the City include the Utility Fund, Sanitation Fund, Natural Gas Fund, and
Community Aquatic Park Fund. The Utility System Fund operates with revenues generated
by the sale of water and wastewater services, The Natural Gas Fund operates with revenues
generated by the sale of natural gas. The Sanitation Fund is used to record all revenues and
expenditures for the Solid Waste contract. The Community Aquatic Park Fund accounts for
all revenues and expenditures for the community aquatic park.

The operating expenditures are those incurred by the delivery of those services. A
more complete discussion of the financial operations of this fund can be found in Notes A
and L. As shown below, both the revenues and expenditures were increased from the prior
year.
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AD VALOREM TAXES

State statutes require the value of the property as of January 1 of each year be used as
the basis for calculating ad valorem tax for the ensuing fiscal year. The estimated adjusted
taxable value of property in the City at January 1, 2012 was $1,411,293,956 and was taxed
at $,325824 per one hundred dollars of assessed value resulting in an adjusted tax roll (taxes
receivable) of $4,301,404.

Collections
Current taxes of $4,275,421 representing 99.3% of the adjusted tax roll were
collected during fiscal year 2012-2013. The collection rate was comparable to the year end.

Current tax collections have exceeded 97% in each of the last ten years.

Allocation of Ad Valorem Taxes

The revenue to be received from current tax collections is distributed between the
General Fund and the Debt Service Fund according to the rates for allocation set when the
budget ordinances are adopted. Allocation of property tax revenues by purpose for fiscal
year 2012 and the preceding four years is given in the following table. The amounts in the
table are per one hundred dollars of assessed value.

012
' .1-58338 172497

General 1605 168320

165133 0 157307
Fund LR 2 _

Total - - 2790 299000 . 298681 310008~ 308890  .325824

AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its comprehensive annual
financial report for the year ended September 30, 2012. This is the tenth year that the City
has applied for and received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, the City published an easily readable and efficiently organized basic financial
report. This report satisfies both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable
legal requirements,

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that
our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of
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Achievement Programs’ requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the City also received the GFOA’s Award for Distinguished Budget
Presentation for its annual appropriated budget since October 1, 2002. The budget for
October 1, 2013 has been submitted for review and notification of an award is awaited. In
order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the City’s budget
document is judged on proficiency in several categories including policy documentation,
financial planning and organization,

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been accomplished
without the efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Department,
The City Manager, the entire City staff, and the City Council for their interest and support in
planning and conducting the financial operation of the City in a responsible and progressive
manner.

Respectfully submitted,
Patty Howard
Director of Finance
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Michael A. Arnold, PLLC

501 E. MARKET CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT PHONE (361} 729-3545
£.0. BOX 1266 FAX  (351) 790-9692
ROCKPORT, TEXAS 78381-1266

Independent Auditor's Report

To the City Council

City of Rockport, Texas
822 E. Market
Rockport, Texas 78382

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Rockport, Texas ("the City")
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
colleclively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibilily is to express opinions on these financial stafements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Uniled States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmemt Auditing Slandards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal conirol relevant to the City's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.



Opinions

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type aclivities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of City of Rockport, Texas as of September 30, 2013, and the respective
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budget
comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note A to the financial statements, in 2013, City of Rockport, Texas adopted new accounting
guidance, Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

As described in Note A to the financlal statements, in 2013, City of Rockport, Texas adopted new accounting
guidance, Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 85, ltems Previously Reporfed as
Assets and Liabilities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
identified as Required Supplementary Information in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic
financlal statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical conlext. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the Required Supplementary Information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the Information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obfained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance,

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Rockport, Texas's basic financial statements. not required parts of the basic financial
statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis
as required by U. S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial staterments and the scheduie of expenditures of federal
awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underiying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such informationt has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and recencifing such information directly {o the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmaijor fund financial statements and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respecls in relation lo the basic financial
statements as a whole.



The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 7,
2014 on our consideration of City of Rockport, Texas's internal control over financiai reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to dascribe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal contro! over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Rockport, Texas's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Respectiully submitted,

NG M T

Michael A. Arold, PLLC

Raockport, Texas
February 7, 2014
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Rockport’s financial performance provides an
overview of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013.
Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter on page i and the City’s financial
statements, which begin on page 13, '

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the City of Rockport exceeded its liabilities at the close of 2013 by
$36,835,435(net assets). Of this amount, $7,915,563 (unrestricted net assets) may
be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors,

¢ The government’s total net assets increased by $2,656,152 in 2013. At the close of
the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $12,622,035, an increase of 2.4% in comparison with the prior
year. Approximately $2,821,064 (22.4%) of this total amount is available for
spending at the government’s discretion.

e The General fund reported an unassigned fund balance of $2,821,064 or, 45.6% of
total general fund expenditures.

o The City’s total long-term debt decreased by $1,472,399 (3.6%) during the current
fiscal year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic
financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) notes to financial statements, and 3) combining
and individual funds. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition
to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets

changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
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cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that
will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods, (e.g. uncollected taxes and earned but
unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of
Rockport that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues
(governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities),
The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, public
works, tourism, culture and recreation and interest and fiscal charges. The business-type
activities of the City include the Water, Wastewater and Natural Gas Utility System,
Sanitation, and the Community Aquatic and Skate Park.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 13 and 14 of this repott.
Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Rockport, like other
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Rockport can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.
Cutrently, the City does not have any fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
stalements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact
of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds
and governmental activities.

The City maintains thirteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement
of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund balances for a General Fund, Debt Service
Fund, and the Capital Improvements Funds, all of which are considered to be major funds.
Data from the other seven governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated



presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund, A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance
with this budget,

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 16 through 22 of
this report,

Proprietary Funds. The City maintains four different types of proprietary funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities
in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for
its Utility System, Natural Gas System, Sanitation and the Community Aquatic Park.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail, The proprictary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the Utility System, Natural Gas System, Sanitation and the Community
Aquatic Park. Only the Utility System Fund is considered to be a major fund of the City.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 23 through 27 of this
report,

Notes to the Financial Statements, The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 28
through 46 of this report.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes,
this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of
Rockport’s operations, The combining statements teferred to carlier in connection with
non-major governmental funds and internal service funds are presented immediately
following the required supplementary information on pensions, Combining and individual
fund statements and schedules can be found beginning on page 48 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the City of Rockport, assets exceeded liabilities by
$36,835,435 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

$23.3 million or 63.3%, reflects the City’s investment in capital assets (e.g, land, buildings,
machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire these assets which is still
outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to



repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Net Assets at September 30, 2013

Table 1

Assels
Current and Other Assels
Resliicted Assets
Capital Assets, nel of
accumulated depreciation
Total Assets

Deferred Outflow of Resources
Total Assets and Deferred

Liabllities
Current & Due Within One
Year

Due in Mere Than One Year
Total Liabllities

Deferred Inflow Resources
Total Liabilitles and Deferred

Net Assets

Invested in Capital Assels,

Net of Related Debt
Restricted for;

Debt Service

Capilal Projects
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business Type Activities

Total Government

2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013

$ 5,220,144 $5,172,754 $ 6459517  $7.020.865 $11,679,661 $12,202,619
8,206,961 8,134,848 3,130,015 1,624,446 11,336,976 9,759,084
22,645,126 23,300,485 33,187,491 33,701,551 55,832,617 57,002,036
36,072,231 36,607,887 $42,777,023  $42,355,862 $ 78,849,254 $78,963,749
- 518,371 - 290,208 - 808,577
36,072,231 37,126,258 $42,777,023  $42,646,068 $ 78,849,254 79,772,326
2,207,055 2,279,449 3,130,937 3,208,829 5,337,992 5,488,278
21,698,680 21,103,471 17,117,009 16,248,675 38.814.689 37,352 146
23,905,735 23,382,920 20,247,946 19,457,504 44.153.681 42,840,427

- - - 96,467 - 96,467
23,805,735 23,382,920 20,247,948 19,653,971 44.153.681 42,936,894

9,313,304 12,137,914 17,967,353 16,147,439 27,280,657 28,285,353

408,684 451,153 183,991 183,366 592,675 634,519
2,444,508 1,154,274 4377731 6,761,292 6,822,239 7,915,583
$12,166,496 $13,743,338 $22,529,075 $23,092,007  $34.695.571 $36,835,435




An additional portion of the City’s net assets (2%) represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of untestricted net
assets (98%) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors. It has been the practice of the City to finance major maintenance and
rehabilitation of infrastructure or invest in new capital assets by issuance of Jong term debt
and cautious and conservative draws on these unrestricted net assets. It is anticipated that
this will continue to be our practice in the future.

At the end of the current fiscal yeat, the City is able to report positive balances in all three
categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate
governmental and business-type activities. These positive balances are indicative of the
conservative fiscal practices of the City with combine careful budgeting procedures and
moderate operating activities at all staff levels.

Changes in Net Assets

Table 2
Business-type
Governmentai Activities . Activities Total Government
2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 715,567 $622,316 $ 10,187,023 10,798,384 $10,902,590 § 11,420,700
Operating grants and contributions 455,997 366,214 62,000 42,000 517,997 408,214
Capitat grants and contributions 634,417 738,309 3,500 256,450 637,917 995,759
Total program revenues 1,805,981 1,727,839 $ 10,252,523 11,006,834 $12,058,504 12,824,673
General revenues
Properly taxes 4,159,989 4,379,318 - - 4159,080 4,379,318
Sales taxes 1,929,948 2,051,342 - - 1,920,048 2,051,342
Franchise and other taxes 795,072 860,734 795,072 860,734
Qccupancy taxes 662,330 698,934 - - 662.330 698,934
Interest 31,763 48,287 21,108 16,076 52,871 64,363
Miscellansous 78,699 54,618 - - 78,699 54,618
Total revenues 9,463.782 8,093,233 $10,273,631 16,076 19,737,413 8,109,309
Expenses
General government 1,615,689 1,634,488 - - 1,615,609 1,534,488
Public safety 3,531,426 3,390,096 - - 3,531,426 3,390,096
Public Works 1,663,014 1,563,687 - 1,563,014 1,563,687
Culture and recreation 788,105 914,460 - - 788,105 914,460
Tourism 464,438 536,505 - - 464,438 536,505



In the Utility System Fund, the City has little control over the costs of the two products:
water and natural gas delivered to the City’s customers. Water is purchased from the San
Patricioc Municipal Water District, and natural gas is purchased from two sources, South
Cross Energy and Gulf Coast Gas Gathering. Water rates were increased by 5.25% this
year, other than pass through increase due to increases from the supplier. The additional
revenue generated will be used to pay debt service for capital improvements. Wastewater
rates were also increased this year by 5.25%. The additional funds generated by this
increase will be used to make payments on the Cured in Place Pipe (CIPP) Project portion
of the 2007 Bond Issue and other projects. The City purchased Aransas Natural Gas
Company, a privately owned company, on May 30, 2008. Natural Gas rates were increased
by 24.% this year. The additional funds generated by this increase will be used for the CNG
Fueling Station, and for Distribution Integrity Management Program required by the Texas
Railroad Commission. The fuel adjustment rate is calculated each month based on the rate
natural gas is purchased for. The City contracts with McLain Decision Support Systems
each year to do a rate study to ensure that the revenues generated by the Utility System
Fund will support the associated expenditures. This study includes the natural gas revenue
also.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City of Rockport uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The City’s funds fall into two
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds., The focus of the City governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined
ending balances of $12,622,035, an increase of $293,041 compared to the prior year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal
year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $2,821,064. This fund balance is the
amount available without constraints from outside of the City to fund the City’s normal
operations. In order to illustrate the City’s ability to withstand a major disaster such as a
hurricane, it is worthwhile to measure the unreserved fund bajance in terms of the number
of days of operations is could sustain. For 2013, the daily cost of operation in the general
fund was $15,336(total current expenditures of $5,597,810 divided by 365 days in the
year). The City of Rockport’s unassigned general fund balance would be able to sustain
184 days in the event of disaster that interrupted normal revenue generation. The City of
Rockport makes every effort to keep the unreserved fund balance at 180 days.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights,
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During FY 2012-13, the General Fund budget was not amended.

Proprietary Funds. The proprietary funds ended 2013 with combined net assets totaling
$23,090,097. The proprietary funds include the Utility System Fund, Natural Gas Fund,
Sanitation, and the Community Aquatic & Skate Park. The Water and Sewer Fund and the
Natural Gas Fund are the only major funds in this group.

Proprietary Fund Budgetary Highlights.

During FY 2012-13, the proprietary funds were not amended at all.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets, The City of Rockport’s investment in capital assets for its governmental
and business type activities as of September 30, 2013 totals at $57,002,036 (net of
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes, land, buildings and
improvements, vehicles, furniture and equipment, infrastructure and construction in
progress. The total increase in the investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year
was 2%.

Major capital asset events during 2013 include the following;

Anoxic Tank ~ In response to a study showing that nitrates were confributing to
lower water quality in Little Bay, construction was begun on a $785,000 anoxic
tank at the wastewater treatment plant. The anoxic tank is designed to remove
significant amounts of nitrates from the plant’s effluent, which flows down the Tule
Creek and into Little Bay. The tank is substantially complete and is fully
operational as of the end of September, 2013.

Public Service Center — Construction of a new $3,750,000 Public Service Cenler
began in 2011 and is complete, including construction of out buildings. Public
Wotks and Building and Development relocated to the facility in January, 2013,
Although not submitied as a LEED project, there are many LEED features
incorporated into the design. These design features are expected fo result in
superior energy efficiency and lower operating and maintenance costs. Located at
one of the highest points on Live Oak peninsula, the facility was also designed to
serve as a base of operations in the event of a catastrophic event. In an emergency
it can sleep and feed over 100 responders, has an electrical generator to serve the
entire building, provide water and sewer service, and can also serve as a back-up
communications center. '

Tule Hike and Bike Trail — In June 1999 the City was awarded a $648,023
Statewide Transportation Enhancement Program grant from the Texas Department
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of Transportation for construction of the one-mile long Tule Hike and Bike Trail.
Delayed primarily by right-of-way acquisition issues and mandated changes in
design criteria, the project began construction in January, 2012 and was completed
by the end of November, 2012. This is a significant addition to the City’s park
facilities and will link Memorial Park to Highway 35 business and ultimately to the
trails planned by Aransas Pathways.

o Water Tower — Construction of $2,045,000 water tower was completed and
operational in April, 2012. The tower is located adjacent to the Public Service
Center and adds one million gallon in storage and also will provide the Public
Service Center with a water source in the event the facility has to be used as an
emergency operations center and the distribution system is offline.

For a complete analysis of the changes in capital assets, the reader is encouraged to review
Note E of the Notes of the Basic Financial Statements. '

Long-Term Debt, The City of Rockport did not issue any new debt in 2013.
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

During the budget process for fiscal year 2013-14 the elected and appointed officials
considered many factors including the forces driving the economy in their budget
decisions. The housing starts, development, and raw land being turned into retail and
housing can each be measured by the number of new water connections recorded. An
increase in Hotel Occupancy Tax and sales tax indicate an increase in tourism. There has
been an increase in registered voters since 2000, going from 5,987 in 2006 to 6186 in 2010,
equating to a 4% increase. The population for Rockport is 9,357 as of 2011 which is up
from 8,766 in the 2010 U, S, Census.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial repott is designed to inform the citizens, taxpayers and customers of the City
of Rockport as well as its investors and creditors about the City’s finances and to provide
accountability for the public support that it receives. If you have any questions about the
report or need additional financial information, contact the Finance Director’s Office at the
City of Rockport, 622 E. Market Street, Rockport, Texas 78382.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables { net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Properly taxes
Other taxes
Accounts
Special assessments
Intergovernmental
Internal balances
Inventories
Restricted assels:
Cash and investments
Capital assets;
Land
Contruction in progress
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
UHility system
Machinery and equipment
infrastructure
Accumulated depreciation
Total Asssels

Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Deferred Loss on Bond Refunding
Totat Deferred Qutflows of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of
Resources

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued iiabilities
Accrued interest payable
Payable from restricted asssts
Customer Deposils
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Deferred Gain on Bond Refunding
Total Deferred inflow of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflow of
Rasources

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted For:
Debt Service
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this stalement.

EXHIBIT A-1

Govarnmental Business-type
Activities Activities Tolal

$ 3,892,910 $ 5,715,333 0,608,243
162,563 -- 152,563
463,707 - 463,707
92,737 1,168,422 1,251,158
7,208 4,136 11,344
490,419 = 490,419
73,210 151,974 225,184
8,134,648 1,624,448 9,759,094
4,802,767 214,953 5,117,720
120,877 - 120,877
4,842,944 4,192,187 9,035,131
1,884,604 1,944,240 3,828,844

- 43,990,077 43,990,077
3,664,282 2,100,097 5,764,379
12,972,058 -- 12,872,056
{5,087,045) (18,740,003} (23,827,048)
36,607,887 42,355,862 78,963,749
518,371 290,206 808,677
518,371 290,206 808,577
37,126,258 42,648,068 79,772,326
310,165 923,192 1,233,357
77,827 52,402 130,229
99,605 78,871 178,476

- 3,273 3,273

- 995,908 895,998
1,461,862 1,155,093 2,616,945
21,433,471 16,248,675 37,682,146
23,382,920 19,457,504 42,840,424
-- 96,467 06,467

= 96,467 086,467
23,382,920 19,563,971 42,936,891
12,137,914 16,147,439 28,285,353
451,163 183,366 634,519
1,164,271 6,761,292 7,915,563

$ 13,743,338 $ 23,002,097 36,835,435
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Funclions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Governmental Activities
General government $ 1,534,488 § 13,289 3% -- -
Public safety 3,390,096 393,762 354,341 98,201
Public works 1,563,687 215,265 - 354,574
Cullure and recreation 914,480 -~ 11,873 286,534
Tourism 536,506 - = -
Interest and flscal charges 908,935 -- - --
Total governmential activities 8,848,171 622,316 366,214 739,309
Business-type Activities:
Sanitation -- 16,686 - -
Water & Sewer 7,840,317 8,907,627 - 256 450
Communily Aqualic Center 333,267 133,706 42,000 -
Natural Gas 1,256,075 1,740,465 - -
Tolal Business-type Activities 9,429,659 10,798,384 42,000 266,450
Tolal Primary Government $ 18,277,830 $ 11,420,700 $ 408,214 995,759

General Revenues:
Properly Taxes, Leived for General Puposes
Property Taxes, Levied for Deht Services
Sailes Taxes
Franchise Taxes and Other Taxes
Occupancy Taxes
Unrestricted investment Earnings
Other Revenues
Transfers
Total General Revenues and Transfers
Change in Net Assels
Net Assels - Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment
Net Assels - Ending

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-type
Aclivities Aclivities Total

$ (1,521,199} $ {1,521,199)
(2,543,792) (2,543,792)
{993,848} (993,848)
{616,053} (616,053)
{536,505) (536,505)
{908,935) (908,935)
(7,120,332) {7,120,332)

- $ 16,686 16,688

- 1,323,660 1,323,660

- {157,561) (157,561)

- 484,390 484,390

- 1,667,175 1,667,175
(7,120,332) 1,667,175 {5,453,157)
2,319,849 -- 2,319,849
2,059,469 -- 2,059,469
2,051,342 -- 2,051,342
860,734 - 860,734
698,934 - £98,934
48,287 16,076 64,363

54,818 - 54,618

849,138 {849,138} --

8,942,371 {833,062) 8,109,309
1,822,039 834,113 2,656,152
12,167,414 22,610,606 34,778,020
{246,115} {352,622) {598,737)

$ 13,743,338 % 23,092,097 $_  36,835435
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

ASSETS

Assets:
Cash and investments

Receivables { net of allowances for uncoliectibles}):

Property taxes

Other laxes

Accounts

Speclal assessments

Intergovernmental
Due from other funds
Inventories
Reslricted assets:

Cash and Invesiments

Total Assets

Liabilitles:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenditures

Due to other funds
Total Liabilities

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Unavailable properly taxes
Unavallable special assessments
Unavailable taxes - Utllity Surcharge
Total Deferred Oulflows of Resources

Total Liabllities and Deferred Cultflows of

Resources

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total Liabilities and Fund balances

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this statement.

3,141,210

206,988

85,008

292,886

2,848,314
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General
Fund

2,432,532

85,008
239,032
1,929

354,559
27,250

145,630
61,358

85,808

27,250

2,821,064

5,089,524

$

Debt
Service -

451,153

66,655

451,163

451,153

$

517,808




EXHIBIT A-3

2007 Other Total
Certlficate of Governmental Governmental
Obligation Funds Funds
-- $ 1,005,098 $ 3,888,783
-- -~ 152,563
- 224,675 463,707
-- 15,808 17,737
-- 7,208 7,208
- 490,419 490,418
-- -- 354,559
-- - 27,260
5,649,416 2,485,232 8,134,648
5,649,416 4,228,440 13,536,874
- $ 164,535 $ 310,165
" 13,226 74,584
- 354,552 354,559
- 532,320 739,308
- -- 152,563
- 7,208 7,208
-- 15,760 15,760
-— 22,968 175,531
- 555,288 914,839
- (40,670) (13,420)
5,649,416 3,330,400 9,430,989
- 10,473 10,473
-- 372,949 372,949
- - 2,821,064
5,649,416 3,673,162 12,622,035
5,649,416 $ 4,228,41(_)_ % 13,636,874
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EXHIBIT A-4

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANGE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Total fund balances - governmental funds balance shest $ 12,622,035

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:

Capilal assels used in governmenta! activities are not reporied in the funds, ‘ 23,290,016
Property taxes receivable unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds. 152,563
The assets and {iabilittes of inlernal service funds are included in governmental activities in the SNP. 57,313
Payables for bond principal which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. (19,816,873)
Payables for capital leases which are not due In the current period are not reported in the funds. {1,037,000)
Payables for bond interest which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. {99,605)
Payables for compensated absences which are not due in the current period are not reporied in the funds. {344,386)
Pension obligation payable is not reported in the funds. (260,240)
Deferred Loss on refunding bonds is not reported In the funds. 518,371
Court fines receivabie unavailable lo pay for current perlod expenditures are deferred in the funds. 75,000
OBEP Obfigation in not reported in the funds. (1,436,824)
Ceriain taxes recelvable are unavailable to pay for current perlod expenditures are deferred in the funds. 15,760
Assessments recelvable unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds. 7,208
Net posilion of governmental activities - Stalement of Net Position $ 13,743,338

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of this statement.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Revenue:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines
Interest
Miscellaneous

Tolal revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Cuiture and recreation
Tourism

Capital outlay

Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Bond issuance cost

Tolal expenditures

Excess {deficlency) of revenues (under) expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Issuance of certificates of obligation
Premium on bonds sold
Interest on bonds sold
Payment to refunding escrow agent

Tolal other financing sources {uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

The accompanying noles are an integral part of this statement,

General
Fund

§ 5,216,392
201,950

85,024

13,316

197,874

14,540

40,034

__ 5,769,729

1,275,866
2,408,306
1,196,966

716,872

590,582

6188302

(419,263)
930,093
(793,571)

136,522
(282,741)

3,131,055
$ 2,848,314

19

Debt
Service

2,080,151

646

1,181,404
824,889
87,178

2,093,471

(32,674)

42,893

3,973,688
309,072
12,409
(4,195,782)

142480

$

109,806

341,347

451,153



EXHIBIT A-5

2007 Other Total
Certificate of Governmental Governmental
Obiigation Funds Funds
$ - $ 898,122 $ 8,174,665
-~ -- 201,950
- : 1,028,455 1,113,479
- - 13,315
- 17,379 215,253
15,311 5,381 35,878
- 14,584 54,618
15,311 1,963,921 9,809,158
- 14,139 1,289,805
- 736,025 3,144,331
- - 1,196,966
. 48,552 763,424
e 536,505 536,505
92,780 723,258 1,406,620
- 30,661 1,212,065
- 4,859 820,748
- -- 87,178
92,780 2,091,999 10,468,642
(77,469) {128,078) (857,484)
-- 714,416 1,687,402
- (42,893) (836,464)
- .- 3,973,888
- - 309,072
- - 12,409
- - (4,195,782)
- 671,523 950,625
(77,469) 543,445 293,041
5,726,885 3,129,707 12,328,994
$ 5,649,416 $ 3673152 $ 12,622,035

20



EXHIBIT A-6

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds : 3 293,041

Amounts reported for governmentat aclivilies In the Statement of Activities
("SOA") are different because:

Capital outlays are not reported as expenses in the SOA, 1,406,620
The depreciation of capital assels used in governmental activities is not reported in the funds. (750,434)
Certain properly tax revenues are deferred in the funds, This is the change in these amounts this year. (1.417)
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense In the SOA. 5,334,847
Repayment of capital lease principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense In the SOA. 73,000
Deferred loss of refunding bonds are amoriized in the SOA but not in the funds. (53,481)
Change in OBEP in not reported in the funds. (197,406}
{Increase} decrease In accrued interest from beginning of period to end of period. 12,556
The net revenue (expense)} of internal service funds Is reported with governmental activities. {47,599}
Compensated absences are reported as the amount earned in the SOA but as the amount paid in the funds, {8,737)
Certain receivables are deferred In the funds. This is the change In these amounts this year. 922
Proceeds of bonds do not provide revenue In the SOA, but are reported as current resources in the funds. {3,973,888)
Bond premiums are reported in the funds but not in the SOA. {309,072)
Amortization of Bond Premiums are recorded in SOA, but not in the funds. 48,916
Change in net penston obligation is not reportad in the funds, {5,829)
Change in net position of governmental activities - Statement of Activities $ 1,822,038

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET {GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Revenue:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expendilures:
Current:

General government

Publlc safely

Public works

Culture and recreation
Capilal outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures
Other financing sources {uses);
Transfers in
Transfers out
Tolai other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT A-7
Variance with
{GAAP Basis) Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
QOriginai Final Actual {Negative)
$ 5025415 $ 5025415 $ 52168392 § 190,977
146,800 146,800 201,850 55,150
8,000 9,000 85,024 76,024
15,500 15,500 13,315 (2,185)
341,500 341,500 197,874 (143,626)
13,000 13,000 14,540 1,540
21,000 20000 40,034 20,034
5,671,215 5,571,215 5,769,129 197,914
1,312,185 1,312,690 1,275,666 37,024
2,447,626 2,447,626 2,408,306 39,320
1,422,507 1,422,507 1,196,966 225,541
712,644 712,644 716,872 {4,228)
223,100 223,100 590,582 {367,482)
6,118,062 6,118,567 6,188,392 {69,825)
(546,847) {547,352) (419,263) 128,089
1,074,992 1,059,782 930,093 (129,689)
(619,793)  (619,793) (793,571)  (173,778)
455,199 439,989 136,622 _ 303,467
(91,648) (107,363) (282,741) (175,378)
3,131,055 3,131,055 3,131,085 -
$ 3,039,407 $ 3,023,682 $' 2,848,314 & {175,378)
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

ASSETS

Assels:
Cuirent assels:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investmenis
Receivables { net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Accounts
Speclal assessmenis
inventories
Tolal current assels

Noncurrent assets:
Restricled assels:

Cash and cash equivatents
Accounts recelvable - noncurrent
Capilal assals:

Land

Buildings
Improvements other than buildings

Waler system

Sewer system

Natural gas system

Machinery and equipment

Accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

Tolal Assels

Deferred Qulftows of Resources
Deferred Loss on Bond Refunding
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Curreni Liabilities;
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued Interes! payable
Customer deposits
Payable from reslricted assels
Compensaled absences
Bonds and ceriificaies of obligation -
current portion
Total current Habilitles

Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds and certificaies of obligation payable
Compensaled absences :
Total noncurrent iiabilities
Tolal liabilitles

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Gain on Bond Refunding
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET ASSETS:
Investment in Capital Assels, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for Debt Service
Unrestricted Net Assets
Total Nel Assets

Enlerprise
Fund

Waler & Sewer
Fund

$ 4,659,504
100,000

743,169
4,136
90,116
6,596,925

1,624,448
118,661

110,653
4,192,187
23,719,194
18,381,673

2,086,035
(17,627,098)
32,606,651

38,203,576

280,208
s 290,206

$ 445,542
45,057

78,871

895,300

3,273

80,000

1,075,083
2,723,136

16,240,797
3,609
16,244,406
18,967,542

96,467
96,467

13,309,432
183,366
5,036,975

$ 18,429,773
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Enterprise
Fund
Natural
Gas
Fund

$ 708,995

113,334

61,858
884,187

1,889,210

{325,484}
1,563,726

2,447,913

$ 58,132
4,973

1,663,728

816,813
s__2.3805%




EXHIBIT A-8

MNonmajor
Internal Service
Fund
Nonmajor Tolal
Enterprise Enterprise Fleet
Funds Funds Fund
$ 246,834 $ 5,615,333 $ 41427
- 100,000 -
183,258 1,039,761 --
- 4,136 -
- 151,974 45,960
430,002 6,911,204 50,087
-- . 1,624,446 -
- 118,661 -~
104,300 214,953 -
-- 4,192,187 .
1,944,240 1,844,240 --
-- 23,719,194 -
- 18,381,673 --
-- 1,889,210 -
13,162 2,100,097 17,448
(787,421) (18,740,003} {6,979}
1,274,281 35,444,658 10,469
1,704,373 42,355,862 60,556
- 290,206 -
D — $_ 290,206 $ -
% 419,518 3 923,192 $ -
2,372 52,402 3,243
-- 78,871 -
698 995,998 -
- 3,273 -
-- 80,000 --
- 1,075,083 B --
422,588 3,208,829 3,243
-- 16,240,797 -
- 7,878 b
- 16,248,675 --
422,588 19,457,504 3,243
-- 96,467 -
- 96,467 -
1,274,281 16,147 439 -
- 183,366
7,504 6,761,292 ' 57,313
$ 1,281,785 $ 23,092,097 $ 57,313
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Enterprise
Fund
Water & Sewer
Fund
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services 8,907,527
Totat Operating Revenues 8,907 527
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal servicas 1,679,447
Contractual services 392,569
Maintenance 500,542
Supplies 3,702,403
Other 35,611
Depreciation 969,332
Total Operating Expenses 7,179,804
Operating Income (Loss) 1,727,723
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
interest income 15,602
Intergovernmental revenue -
Interest expense (660,513}
Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) (644,911)
Net Income (Loss) before Operating Transfers 1,082,812
Capital Contributions 256,450
TRANSFERS:
Interfund transfers in 150,000
Interfund transfers out (915,400)
Change in Nef Assets 573,853
Net Assets, beginning of year 19,112,342
Prior Period Adjustment {256,422)
Net Assets, end of year 19,429,773

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Enterprise
Fund
Natural
Gas
Fund

1,740,465

1,740,465

277,409
24,189
132,265
750,352
8,886
62,974

1,266,075

$

484,390

474

(164,684)

320,180

2,156,559

{96,200}
2,380,539



Nonmajor
Enterprise
Funds

$ 150,392

150,392

144,873
21,851
13,207
87,261

335
85,740

333,267

(182,875)

42,000

42,000

{140,875

80,955

(69,920)

1,341,705

$ 1,281,785

Total
Enterprise
Funds

10,798,384

10,798,384

2,001,729
438,609
646,014

4,540,016

44,732

1,008,046

8,765,146

2,029,238

16,076
42,000
(660,513)

(602,437)
1,476,801

256,450

230,955
{1,080,093)

834,113

22,610,806

(352,622)
23,092,097
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EXHIBIT A-9

Nonmajor
Internal Service
Fund

Fieel
Fund

535,340
535,340

134,515
19,034
29,128

396,705

12
1,745
581,139

(45,799)

{45,799)

(1,800)
(47,5099)
104,912

57,313




EXHIBIT A-10

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Enlerprise Funds
Water & Nalural Nonmajor Senvice
Sewer Gas Enter, Funds Tolals Funds

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:;
Cash Received from Customers $ 8,861,910 $ 1,912,562 148,335 § 11,022,807 $ 535,340
Cash Receipis (Payments) for
Operating Transactions with Other Funds - - -
Cash Payments o Employees for Services (1,581,051) (275,747 {144,873) {2,001,671) (134,515)

Cash Payments to Other Suppliers for Goods and Services {4,704,030) (884,773} (112,645} (5,701,448) {444,401)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operaling Aclivities 2,676,829 752,042 (109,183) 3,319,688 {43,576)
Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Actlvities:

Operating Granis Received - - 42,000 42,000 -

Transfers From Cther Funds : 150,000 -- 63,215 213,215 -

Transfers To Clher Funds {915,409) {164,684) -- (1,080,093) {1,800)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capilal Financing Activities {765,409} {164,684) 105,215 {824,878) (1,800)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities;

Proceeds from Issuance of Long-term Debt 2,847,307 -- - 2,847 307 -

Principal and Interest Paid (4,375,543) - -- (4.375,543) -

Acquisition or Consiruction of Capilal Asseis (1,575,986} (36,210) - (1,612,186} --

Proceeds from sale of capital assels -- - -

Amounts paid for bond issuance - - - - -

Contributed Capital 256,450 - - 256,450 --

Net Cash Provided {Used) for Capital & Related Financing Aclivities (2,847,772) {36,210} - (2,883,982) --
Cash Flows from investing Activities:
Purchase of Investments - - - - -
Interest and Dividends on Invesimenls 15,602 474 -- 16,076 --
Net Cash Provided (Used) for Investing Activilies 156,602 474 - 16,076 -
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents {920,750} 551,622 (3,968) {373,066} (45,376}
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 7,204,700 349,773 250,802 7,805,275 44,503
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 3 6,283,950 & 901,395 246,834 $ 7432179 $ 4,127

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income {Loss) $ 17271723 % 484,390 (182,875)% 2,029,238 § {45,799}
Adjusiments to Reconcile Operaling Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation and Amortization 969,332 62,974 65,740 1,098,046 1,745
Provision for Uncoltectible Accounts .- - - - -
Change In Assets and Liabilities:

Decrease (Increase} in Receivables (25,808) 172,097 {13,447) 132,842 -

Decrease (Increase) in Inventories {9,116) {18,440) - {27,556) {1,022}
Decrease (Increase) In Prepaid Expenses - - -- - -
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payahle (63,889} 49,359 3,222 {11,308) -
increase {Decrease) Ih Payroll Deductions -- .- - - -
Increase (Decrease) In Accrued Wages Payable 24,874 1,810 -- 26,684 --
Increase (Decreass} in Interfund Payables - - 17,740 17,740 -
Increase {Decrease) in Customer Deposits 80,191 - -- 80,191 -

Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Expenses {26.478) {148) 437 (26,189) 1,500
Increase (Decrease} in Unearned Revenue -- .- -~ -- -

Total Adjustments 949,106 267,652 73,602 1,260,450 478

Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operaling Activities $ 2,676,829 $ 752,042 (109,183)$ 3,319,688 % (43,576)

Summary of cash and cash equivalenls:

Cash and cash equivalents - operating L 4,659,504 $ 708,995 § 246,834 $ 5615333 % 4,127
Cash and cash equivalenls - restricted 1,624,446 - -- 1,624,446 -

$ 6,283,950 % 708995 % 246834 % 7,239,779 % 4,127

The accompanying noles are an inlegral part of this stalement,

27



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Su

Signifi I fct

The combined financial statements of City of Rockport, Texas (the "Cily") have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles applicabls {o governmenial units which are generally accepted in the United States of
America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") is the accepled slandard selling body for
eslablishing governmentat accounting and financlal reporting principles.

1.

Reporting Entity

The City's basic financlal statements include the accounts of all its operatlons, The Cily evaluated whether any
other entily should be included in these financial slalements. The criteria for including organizations as
component units within the Cily's reporting entily, as set forth in GASB Statement No. 14, "The Financial
Reporting Entity,” Include whether:

- the organization Is legally separale (can sue and be sued in Its name)

~ the Cily holds the corporate powers of the organizalion

- the City appolints a voling majorily of the organization's board

- the City Is able to impose its will on the organization

- the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the City

- there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the City

- the exclusion of the organization would result in misfeading or incomplete financial statlements

The Cily also evaluated each legally separale, tax-exempt organization whose rescurces are used principally to
provide support to the City to determine if its omission from the reporting entity would resull In financial
statements which are misleading or incomplete. GASB Stalement No. 14 requires inclusion of such an
organization as a component unit when: 1) The economic resources received or held by the organization are
entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the Cily, its component units or iis conslituents; and 2) The Cily
or its component units is entitled to, or has the abilily {o otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources
recelvad or held by the organization; and 3) Such economic resources are significant o the Cily.

Based on these crlterfa, the City has no component units. Additionally, the Cily is not a component unit of any
other reporting entity as defined by the GASB Statement.

Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting
a. Basis of Presentation

Governmeni-wide Statements: The statement of net asseis and {he statement of activities include the
financial activittes of the overali government. Eliminations been made to minimize the double-counting
of internal activities. These statements distinguish beiween the governmental and business-lype activilies
of the City. Governmental activiies generally are financed through taxes, inlergovernmental revenues,
and other nonexchange {ransactions. Business-type aclivities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged {o external parties.

The statement of activities presenis a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the
different business-type activities of the Cily and for each function of the Cily's governmental activities.
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or funclion and, therefore, are
clearly identifiable o a particular function. The City does not aliocate indlrect expenses in the siatement
of aclivities. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paild by the recipients of goods or
services offered by the programs and (b} grants and contributions that are resiricted to mesling the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues, including all taxes, are presenied as general revenues.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Fund Financlal Siatements. The fund financlal statements provide information about the Cily's funds,
with separale slatements presented for each fund category. The emphasis of fund financial stalements is
on mafjor governmental and enlerprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
dovernmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonimajor funds.

Proprletary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transaclions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives
and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings,
result from nonexchange transactions or anciltary activitles.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. This is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
City except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Debt Service Fund. This fund Is used to account for resources accumulated to make principal and interest
payments on cutstanding bonds.

2007 Certificate of Obligation Fund. This fund is used fo account for the proceeds and related expenditures
of the 2007 Certificate of Obligation issue.

The City reports the followlng major enterprise funds:

Water & Sewer Fund. This fund is used to account for the aclivities of providing water and sewer services
to the citizens of the Cily.

Natural Gas Fund. This fund Is used to account for the activitles of providing natural gas fo the citizens of
the City.

In addition, the City reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds: These funds are used to account for revenues and expenses related to services provided
to parties inside the Cily. These funds facilitate distribution of support costs fo the users of support
services on a coslreimbursement basis, Because the principal users of the internal services are the
City's governmental activities, this fund iype is included in the "Governmental Activiies" column of the
government-wide financial statements.

b. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Stalements: These financial stalements are repoited
using the economic resources measurement focus. The governmenl-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when ihe relaled cash flows lake
place, Nonexchange transactions, in which the City glves (or receives) value without direclly receiving (or
giving) equal value in exchange, include properly laxes, grants, entiflements, and donations. On an
accrual basls, revenue from properly taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Revenue from grants, eniittements, and donations Is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Flnancial Statemenis: Governmental funds are reported using the current f{inancial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues
are recognized when measurable and avallable. The Cily considers all revenues reported in the
governmential funds o be avaitable if the revenues are coliected within sixly days after year-end.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Revenues from local sources consist primarily of properly taxes. Properly tax revenues and revenues
received from the State are recognized under the susceptible-lo-accrual concept. Miscellaneous revenues
are recorded as revenue when recelved In cash because they are generally not measurable until actually
recelved. Investment earpings are recorded as earned, since they are both measurable and available.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund llabilily is Incurred, except for principal and interes! on
general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as
expendilures to the extent they have malured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as
expenditures In governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital
leases are reporied as other financing sources.

When the Cily incurs an expenditure or expense for which both restricted and unrestricled resources may
be used, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources.

Under GASB Statement No. 20, "Accounting and Financlal Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Enfittes That Use Proprielary Fund Accounting," all proprietary funds will continus to
follow Financlal Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") standards issued on or before November 30, 1989.
However, from that date forward, proprietary funds will have the option of eilher 1) choosing not to apply
fulure FASB standards (including amendments of earlier pronouncements), or 2) continuing to follow new
FASB pronouncements unfess they conflict with GASB guidance. The City has chosen not to apply future
FASB standards,

3.  Financial Statement Amounis

a.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, highly liquid investments are considered to be cash equivatents if they
have a maturity of three months or less when purchased,

Property Taxes

Properly taxes are levied by Oclober 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for all real
and business personal properly In conformity with Subtifle E, Texas Properly Tax Code. Taxes are dues on
receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if nol paid before February 1 of the year following the year in
which imposed. On Japuary 1 of each year, a tax fien aflaches to properly lo secure lhe payment of all
taxes, penalties, and interest ultimately Imposed. Property tax revenues are considered available
{1) when they become due or past due and receivable within the current pericd and (2} when they are
expected to be collected during a 60-day period after the close of the fiscal year,

Allowances for uncollectible tax receivables within the General and Debl Service Funds are based upon
historical experience in coilecting property taxes. Uncollectible personal property taxes are periodically
reviewed and wrilten off, but the Cily is prohibited from writing off real property taxes without specific
statutory authority from the Texas Legislature,

Inventories and Prepaid ltems

The Cily records purchases of supplies as expendilures, ulilizing the purchase method of
accounting for inventory.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable lo future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
tems.

Capital Assels

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reporfed al cost or estimated historical cost. Donated fixed assets
are recorded at their estimated fair value al the date of the donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs
that do not add fo the value of the assel or malerially exiend assets' lives are not capfitalized. A capitalization
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

threshold of $5,000 is used.

Capilal assels are being deprecialed using the stralght-ine method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives
Infrastructure 50
Buildings 20-40
Improvements other than
Buildings 20
Machinery and Equipment 5-10

Receivable and Payable Balances

The City believes that sufficient detail of receivable and payable balances is provided in the financial
stalements fo avoid the obscuring of significant components by aggregation. Therefore, no disclosure is provided
which disaggregates those balances.

There are no significant receivables which are nel scheduled for collection within one year of year end.
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Rescurces

In additlon to assets, the statements of financial pesition (the government-wide Statement of Nel Position
and governmental funds balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outfiows of
resources. This separate financial statement. element, deferred outflows of resources, represenis a
consumption of net position and/or fund balance that applies to one or more fulure periods and so will
not be recognized as an oulflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then,

In addition to liabilities, the stalements of financial position will somefimes reporl a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financlal stalement element, deferred Inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position thaf applies to one or more fulure periods and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

Compensated Absences

On reflirement or death of cerain employees, the City pays any accrued sick leave and vacalion leave in
a lump case payment o such employee or his/her estate,

Inferfund Activity

Interfund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or {ransfers belween funds. Loans are
reported as Interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation.
Services provided, deemed lo be at market or near market rales, are {reated as revenues and expendifures or
expenses. Relmbursements occur when one fund Incurs a cosl, charges the appropriale benefiting fund and
reduces Its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are {reated as transfers. Transfers In
and Transfers Out are nelted and presented as a single "Transfers” line on the government-wide statement of
activities, Similarly, interfund recelvables and payables are nelted and presented as a single “internal Balances"
line of the government-wide statement of net asseis.

nd B - [

For the year ended September 30, 2012, the Cily adopted GASB Statement No. 54 "Fund Bafance Reporiing
and Governmentat Fund Type Definitions." Fund balances are now classified as described below:

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classifled as follows:
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Nonspendable Fund Balance - represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in
spendable form (such as Inventory or prepaid insurance) or legally required to remaln Intact {such as noles
receivable or principal of a parmanent fund).

Resfricled Fund Balance - represents amounts that are conslrained by external parties, constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance - represents amounts that can only be used for a specific purpose because of a
formal action by the Cily's City Council. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless
the Cily Council removes those constrainls by taking the same lype of formal action. Commilted fund
balance amounts may be used for other purposes with appropriate due process by the City Council.
Commitmenls are ltypically done through adoption and amendment of the budget. Committed fund
balance amounts differ from restricted balances in that the constrainis on their use do nol come from
outside parties, constilutional provisions, or enabling fegislation. Only the most binding constraint should
be considered a commitment for fund balance classificalion purposes. Commifted fund balance are
determined by the City Council throuh resolution ore

Assigned Fund Balance - represenls amounts which the Cily intends to use for a specific purpose, but that
do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent may be stipulated by the City
Councll or by an official or body to which the City Council delegates the authority. Specific amounts that
are not restricted or committed in a speclal revenue, capital projects, debt service or permanent fund are
assigned for purposes in accordance with the nature of their fund iype or the fund's primary purpose.
Assignments within the general fund conveys that the intended use of those amounts s for a specific
purpose that is narrower than the general purposes of the Cily liself.

Unassigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which are unconstrained in that they may be spent for
any purpose. Only the general fund reports a posifive unassigned fund balance. Other governmental
funds might report a negalive balance In this classification because of overspending for specific purposes
for which amounts had been restricted, commiltted or assigned.

When an expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which both restricled and unrestricted fund balance is
available, the City considers restricted funds {o have been spent first. When an expendilure is incurred for
which commilted, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the City considers amounts fo
have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of management's estimates.

4.  Budgetary Data

The following procedures are followed In establishing the budgetary data reflected in the basic financial
statements:

a.

Prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, the City Manager presents {o the City Council a budgel for the
next succeading fiscal year. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of
financing them. The City Council may make adjustments to the budget.

A meeting of the Clty Councll Is then called for the purpose of adopting the proposed budget. At least {en
days' public nolice of the meeting must have been given.

Prior to the start of the fiscal year, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance by the
City Council.
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Once a budget is approved, it can be amended only by approval of a majorily of the members of the City
Councit. As required by law, such amendments are made before the fact, are reflacted in the official minutes of
the City Councll and are not made after fiscal year end. During the year, the budget was amended as necessary.
The budget Is adopled at the level of total revenues and expendilures by fund. All budget appropriations lapse
at year end.

The following funds have legally adopted budgets: General Fund, Utllity Surcharge Fund, HolelfiMolel
Occupancy Tax Fund, Municipal Court Security & Technology Fund, City/County Dispatch Fund and  Debt
Service Fund.
The City prepares afl budgets on a "GAAP" basis.
5.  Encumbrance Accounting
Encumbrance accounting is not used by the City.
B. omplian untabill

1. Finance-Related Legal and Contractuaf Provisfons

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Cerlain Financial Statement Note Disclosures,” violations of finance-
relaled legal and conltractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with actions taken lo address such violations:

Violati Action Tal
None reported Not applicable

2. Deficit Fund Balance or Fund Nel Assets of Individual Funds

Following are funds having deficit fund balances or fund nel assels at year end, if any, along with remarks which address
such deflcits:

Deficit
Fund Name Amount Remarks
City County Dispatch % 39,800 Temporary shortage,
Bay Education Center 870 Temporary shortage,

Both deficits will be replenished by General Fund.

3. Budgets

The Cily over expended budgeted amounts in the following funds:

General Fund 3 . 66,478
Utility Bill Surcharge 2,875
City County Dispatch 6,373
Hotel Motel Occupancy Tax 10,755
Municipal Court Security and Tech 1,003
Debt Service Fund 30,863

C. Deposits and Investments

The Clly's funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository contracl. The depository
bank deposils for safekeeping and trust with the Cily's agent bank approved pledged securities in an amount sufficient
o protect City funds on a day-fo-day basis during the perfod of the coniract. The pledge of approved securilies is
waived only to the extent of the depository bank's dollar amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC")
insurance.
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Cash Deposits:

Al Seplember 30, 2013, the carrying amount of the Cily's deposits {cash, certificates’ of deposit, and interesl-bearing
savings accounts) included in temporary investments was $19,325,226 and the bank balance was $19,835,616. The
total deposits were covered by Federal Deposilory Insurance {FDIC) or by collateral heid in the City's agent bank in the
Cily's name.

Investments:

The Cily Is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds Invesiment Act, to adopt, iimplement, and
publicize an investment policy. That policy must be wrilten; primarily emphasize safety of principal and liquidily;
address investment diversification, yield, and maturity and the qualily and capability of inveslinent management; and
include a list of the types of authorized Investments In which the invesling entity's funds may be invested; and the
maximum aflowable stated maturity of any individual investment owned by the entity.

The Public Funds Investment Act {"Act") requires an annual audit of Investment practices. Audil procedures in this
area conducled as a part of the audit of the general purpose financial slatements disclosed thal in the areas of
inveslment praclices, management reporis and establishment of appropriate  poiicies, the City adhered to the
requirements of the Act. Additionally, investment praclices of the Clly were In accordance with locai policies.

The Act delermines the types of investments which are allowable for the City. These include, with certain rastrictions,
(1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain U.S. agencies, and the Stale of Texas, (2) cerlificales of deposit, (3)
certain municipal securities, (4) money market savings accounts, {5) repurchase agreements, (6) bankers acceptances,
{7) mutual funds, (8) investment pools, (9) guaranteed Investment contracts, and (10) common trust funds.

The City's investment at September 30, 2013 are shown below.

Carrying
Investment or Invesiment Type Maturity Value Fair Value
TexPool . NIA $ 7541 § 7.541
Texas Term Daily NiA 34,570 34,570
Cerliffcates of Deposit 2 years 2,000,000 2,000,000
Total Investments 3 2,042,111 % 2,042,111

The Cerlificates of Deposit are included in cash deposits listed above.
a.  Credlt Risk

Credil risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparly to an investment will not fulfill its obfigations. The ratings of
securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are designed to give an indication of credit risk. At year end, the
City was not significantly exposed lo credit risk.

At September 30, 2013, the Cily's investments, other than those which are obligations of or guaranieed by the U,
S. Governmenl, are rated as to credit quality as follows:

Invesiment Raling /
TexPool AAAM Standard and Poor's
Texas Term AAASF Standard and Poor’s
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b.  Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits are exposed to cuslodial credit risk if they are not covered by deposilory Insurance and the deposits are
uncoliateralized, collateralized with securifies held by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities
held by the pledging financial Institution's trust depariment or agant but not in the Cily's name.

investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk If the securilies are uninsured, are not registered In the name of
the government, and are held by either the counterparly or the counterparty's trust department or agent but not in the
Cily's name,

At year end, the Cily was not exposed {o custodial credit risk.
¢.  Concentration of Credit Risk

This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a single issuer, At year end, the
Cily was not exposed lo concentration of credit risk.

d. Interest Rale Risk

This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the
City was not exposed to Interest rate risk.

e.  Forelgn Currency Risk

This Is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investmenl. At year end, the Cily was
not exposed to forsign currency risk.

Inv e ounting Poli

The Cily's general policy is to report money market investments and short-term parlicipating interest-earning
Investment contracls at amortized cost and fo report nonparicipating Interest-earning Investment contracts using a
cosl-based measurs. However, If the fair value of an investment is significantly affecled by the impairment of the
credit standing of the issuer or by other factors, it is reported at falr value. All other investments are reporied at fair
value uniess a legal contract exists which guarantees a higher value. The term “short-term® refers to investmenis
which have a remaining term of one year or less at time of purchase. The term "nonparlicipating” means that the
investment's value does not vary with markel Interest rate changes. Nonnegotiable cerlificates of deposit are exarnples
of nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts.

Public funds Investment pools in Texas ("Pools") are established under the authority of the Inferlocal Cooperation Act,
Chapter 79 of the Texas Government Code, and are subject to the provisions of the Pubiic Funds Investment Act {the "Act"),
Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code. In addition to ather provisions of the Act designed to promote liquidity and
safety of principal, the Act requires Pools to: 1) have an advisory board composed of participants in the pool and other
persons who do not have a business relationship with the pool and are qualified to advise the pool; 2) malntain a continuous
raling of no lower than AAA or AAA-m or an equlvalent rating by at least one nationally recognized rating service; and 3)
maintain the market value of its underlying investiment porifolio within one haif of one percent of the value of ils shares.

The Cily's investments in Pools are reported at an amount determined by the fair value per share of the poofs
underlying portfolio, unless the pool is 2a7-like, In which case they are reported at share value. A 2a7-like pool is one
which is not registered with the Securilles and Exchange Commission ("SEC") as an investment company, but
nevertheless has a policy that it will, and does, operate In a manner consistenl with the SEC's Rule 2a7 of the
investment Company Act of 1940,
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D.

Receivables

Recelvables at September 30, 2043 for the City's individual major funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate,

inclding the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts are as follows:

e ivi
Debt Nonmajor
General Service Governmental Tolal
Property taxes $ 145,070 $ 99,995 § - $ 245,065
Other Taxes 239,032 -- 228,971 468,003
Accounts 1,929 - 15,808 17,737
Fines 75,000 -- - 75,000
Special Assessments - -- 7,208 7.208
Intergovernmental - -- 490,419 490,419
Sundry -- - - .
Gross 461,031 99,995 742,408 1,303,432
Less aliowance for
uncollectibles {59,162) {33,340) {4,298) (96,798)
Net Receivables 3 401,869 $ 66,6565 $ 738,110 1,206,634
Capital Assels
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2013, was as follows:
Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 4,802,767 $ - 3 - 4,902,767
Conslruction in progress 120,877 -- - 120,877
Total capital assets not being depreciated 5,023,644 - -- 5,023,644
.Capital assels being depreciated:
Infrastructure 12,206,219 765,838 - 12,972,057
Buildings and improvements 4,771,680 71,264 - 4,842,944
Impravements other than buildings 1,599,888 284,716 -- 1,884,604
Machinery and Equipment 3,379,479 284,803 3,664,282
Total capital assets being depreciated 21,957,266 1,406,621 - 23,363,887
Less accumulated depresctation for:
Infrastructure {1,004,581) (232,502) - (1,237,083)
Buitdings and improvements {1,072,352) (125,332) -- (1,197,684)
Improvements other than buildings (354,681) (66,029) - {440,710)
Machinery and Equipment (1,903,252) (308,316) - (2,211,568)
Total accumuiated depreciation {4,334,866) {752,179} -- (5.087,045)
Tolal capital assets being depreciated, net 17,622,400 554,442 - 18,276,842
Governmental aclivities capilal assefs, net $ 22,646,044 % 654,442 & -- 23,300,486
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Beginning Ending
Balances increases Decreases Balances
Business-fype aclivities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 214,954 § - $ - 3 214,954
Construction in progress -- - - -
Total capital assets not being depreciated 214,954 - - 214,054
Capilai assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 3,661,586 530,601 - 4,192,187
Improvements other than buildings 1,944,240 -- -- 1,944,240
Ulility System 42,908,568 1,081,508 - 43,990,074
Machinery and Equipment 2,100,008 - - 2,100,008
Total capital assels being depreciated 50,614,492 1,612,107 - 52,226,599
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements {254,330) (106,137) - (360,467)
Improvements other than buildings {711,304) (64,808) - {776,112)
Utility System (14,937,101) (810,701) - {15,747,802)
Machinery and Equipment (1,739,222) (116,400) - {1,855,622)
Total accumulated depreciation {17,641,957) {1,098,046) - {18,740,003)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 32,972,635 514,061 - 33,486,596
Business-type aclivities capital assets, net $ 33,187,489 $ 514,061 $ - $ 33,701,550
Depreciation was charged to functions as follows:
General Government 3 32,711
Public Safety 245,765
Public Works 322,667
Cuiture and Recreation 151,036
$__ 752,179
Water and Sewer System $ 969,332
Natural Gas System 62,974
Communily Aquatic Center 65,740
3 1,098,046
Capital Leases
Included In the governmental acfivities capital assets listed above are the following capitalized leased assets:
Buildings 3 1,607,000
Less accumulated amortization i {381,575)
Capltalized leases, net $ 1,245,425
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F.

G.

Interfund Balances and Aclivity
1. Due To and From Other Funds

Balances due to and due from other funds at September 30, 2013, consisted of the following:

Due To Fund Due From Fund Amount Purpose L
General Fund Other Governmental Funds $ 354,659 Short-term loans
General Fund Cther Enferprise Fund - Short-term loans

Total $ 354550
All amounts due are scheduled {c be repald within on.e year.
2. Transfers To and From Other Funds
Transfers to and from other funds at September 30, 2013, consisted of the following:

Transfers In

General Nonmajor Nonmajor Water &

[ransfers Out Tolal Fund Governmental Proprietary Sewer
Natural Gas Fund $ 164,684 $ $ -- $ $ 164,684
Water and Sewer Fund 915,409 915,408 .
General Fund 775,831 712,616 63,215
Nonmajor Governmental 42,893
Internal Service Fund 1,800 1,800

% 1,000,617 $ 915409 & 712,616 $ 63,215 $ 166,484

The General Fund received funds from the Water & Sewer and Nalural Gas Funds to cover allocaled amounts of
administrative charges.

Other transfers were made to suppiement other funds operations.
Short-Term Debt Activity
The Cily had no shorl-term debt aclivily for the year ended September 30, 2013,

Reslricted Assels

Cash and cash equivalents were restricted for the following purposes at September 30, 2013:

Governmental  Business-lype

Activities Aclivities
Bond Construction Funds $ 8,134,648 § 1,440,455
Deblt Service 183,991

$ 8,134,648 $ 1,624,446
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I.  Long-Term Obligations
The Cily has entered info a continuing disclosure underiaking to provide Annual Reporis and Materlal Event Notices
to the Stale information Depository of Texas, which is the Municipal Advisory Council. This Information is required under
SEC Rule 15¢2-12 to enable Investors to analyze the financial condilion and operations of the Cily.

Long-term debt consisted of the following at September 30, 2013:

General Long- Enerprise
Interest Rate Term Debl Fund Debt
Combination Tax and Revenue Cerlificates of :
Obligalion, Series 2005 4.00-4.50% 531,362 388,608
Combination Tax and Revenue Cerlificates of
Chbligation, Series 2007 4,25.5.25% 12,632,413 2,577,587
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Serles 2009 3.00-4.00% 1,126,734 803,266
Coembination Tax and Revenue Certificales of
Obligation, Series 2009 3.00-4.50% - 9,150,000
General Refunding Bonds, Series 2010 2.00-4.00% 1,181,888 1,178,112
General Refunding Bonds, Serigs 2012 1.00-3.00% 3,924,792 2,870,208
Total Bonded Debt 19,297,219 16,967,781
Unamortized bond premium 519,654 348,109
Capital leases payable 1,037,000 -
OPEB obhligation payable 1,436,824 -
Pension obligation payable 280,240 --
Compensated absences 344,386 87,878
Totat Long-Term Debt 22,895,323 $ 17,403,768

Long-Term Obligation Activity

Leng-term obligations include debt and other long-term liabilitles, Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended

September 30, 2013, are as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year

Governmental activities: o
Certificates of obligation 17,694,949 $ -- 4,531,144 $ 13,063,805 736,832
General obligation bonds 2,691,159 3,873,888 431,633 8,233,414 428,020
Bond premium 327,738 308,072 117,157 519,654 54,000
Capital leases 1,110,000 - 73,000 1,037,000 73,000
Pension obligation 264,411 6,829 - 260,240 30,000
OPEB obligation 1,239,418 366,401 168,895 1,436,824 -
Compensated absences * 335,649 157,440 148,703 344,386 140,000
Total governmental activities 23,583,325 ¢ 4,812,630 $ 5,470,632 $ 22,805,323 $ 1,461,852
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Business-lype activities:

Certificates of obligation % 15,605,051 % - $ 3,073,856 3 12,531,185 288,168
General obligation bonds 2,288,903 2,906,112 758,429 4,436,586 766,980
Bond premium 209,707 228,025 87,623 348,109 19,945
Compensated absences * 114,504 85,120 111,746 87,878 80,000

Total business-type activites  § 18,218,165 § 3,217,257 % 4,031,654 $ 17,403,768 $ 1,155,093

* Other long-term liabilities
The funds typleally used to liquidate other long-term liabilitles in the past are as follows:

Liabifity Activity Type Fund

Compensated absences Govermmental  General Fund

Claims and judgments Governmental  General Fund

Compensated absences Business-type  Water and Sewar Fund
Claims and judgments Business-iype  Walter and Sewer Fund .
Pension Obligation Governmental - General Fund

OPEB Governmental  General Fund

2. Debt Service Requirements
Debt service requirements on long-term debt at September 30, 2013, are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Tolal

2014 $ 1,164,862 $ 796,843 $ 1,061,695
2015 1,213,823 753,052 1,966,875
2016 1,412,611 706,153 2,118,784
2017 1,386,931 656,453 2,043,384
2018 1,389,579 605,172 1,984,751
2019-2023 6,896,748 2,174,996 9,074,744
2024-2027 5,829,675 568,546 6,388,221
Tolals $ 19,297,219 § 6,251,215 $ 25,548,434

Business-lype Aclivilles

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Total

2014 $ 1,065,148 § 630,971 § 1,686,119
2015 1,096,177 505,968 1,692,145
2016 1,132,389 560,993 1,693,382
2017 1,118,069 523,980 1,642,049
2018 1,120,421 483,753 1,604,174
2019-2023 5,500,252 1,789,984 7,280,236
2024-2028 5,180,325 685,665 5,865,990
2029 765,000 17,214 782,214
Totals $ 16,967,781 $ 5,288,528 $ 22,256,309

3. Advance Refunding of Debt

In October 2012, the City issued $6,880,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds {o defease $6,620,000 of
Combination Tax and Revenue C,0.'s Serles 2005. $3,823,712 of the refunded debt was serviced by the Debt
Service Fund and $2,796,288 was debt of the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund.
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The proceeds from the refunding bonds have been deposited in irrevocable trusis which, together wilh interest
earnings on those deposils, will provide amounts sufficient for future redemption or payment of principal and
interest of the issues refunded. The {rust account assels and the liabiliies for the defeased bonds are not
included in the Cily's financial stalements. At September 30, 2013, $6,620,000 of bonds outstanding
were considered defeased.

The present value of the debt savings was $598,000, $345,457 was altribitable to Governmental Aclivilins and
$252,633 to the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund.

4  Capilal Leases

Commitments under capitalized fease agreements for facilitles and equipment provide for minimum fulure lease payments
as of September 30, 2013, as follows:

Endi
2014 $ 120,222
2015 120,162
2018 120,911
2017 120,414
2018 120,661
2019-2023 803,285
2024 121,024
Total Minimum Rentals 1,326,679
Less amount representing inferest (289,679)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 1,637,000
Rental Expendifues in 2013 $ 121,137

The effective Interest rate on capital leases is 4.39%.

J.  Commitments Under Noncapitalized Leases

The City had no material commitments under operaling {(noncapitalized) lease agreements at September 30, 2013.

K. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to toris, theft, damage or destruction of assels, errors and omissions,
injuries o employees, and nafural disasters. During fiscal year 2013, the Cily obtained general liabilily coverage al a
cost thal Is considered to be economically justifiable by joining fogether with other governmental entilies In the State
as a member of the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmenial Risk Peool ("TML"). TML is a seii-funded pool
operating as a common risk management and insurance program. The City pays an annual premium to TML for ils
above Insurance coverage. The agreement for the formation of TML provides that TML will be self-sustaining through
member premiums and will reinsure through commerclal companies for claims in excess of acceptable risk levels;
however, each category of coverage has its own jevel of relnsurance. The Cily continues fo carry commercial
insurance for other risks of loss. There were no significant reductions in commercial Insurance coverage in the past
fiscal year and settled claims resulting from these risks have nol exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal

years.

41




CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

.. Pension Plan

1.

Plan Description

The Cily's pension plan ("Plan") is a non-traditional, JoInt contributory, defined benefit plan which provides
retirement, disabllity and dealh benefits to Plan members and beneficiaries through its affiliation with Texas
Municlpal Retirement System (*TMRS"), an agent muitiple-employer public employee retirement system,
TMRS operates under the authority of Texas Government Cede, Tille 8, Sublille G. The Texas legisiature has
the aulhority to establish or amend benefit provisions and the governing body of the Cily adopls the plan
provisions within the options and constraints established by the ilegislatire. TMRS issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financlal statements and required supplementary Informatlion for TMRS. Thal
report may be oblained by writing to Texas Municlpal Refirement System, P.O, Box 149153, Austin, TX
787148153 or calling (800) 924-8677. Additional nonauthoritalive Information is avallable at the TMRS web
site, hitp:/iwww.tmrs.org.

The plan provisions are adopled by the governing body of the Cily, within the options available in the state governing
TMRS. Plan provisions for the Cily were as follows:

Plan Year Plan Year

_ 2012 2013
Employee deposit rate 7.00% 7.00%
Matching ratio(city to employse) 2to1 2101
Years required for vesting 10 10
Service retirement eligibilily
express as agefyears of service 60/10,0/20 60/10,0/20
Updated Service Credit 100% Repealing 100% Repeéﬁing

Transfers Transfers

Annuity Increase (lo employees} _ 70% of CPI Repeating 70% of CPI Repealing

Contributions

Under the stale law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each cily is determined annually by the actuary,

using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost methed. This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate
and the prior service cost confribution rate, which is calculated fo be a level percent of payroll from year fo year.
The normal cost contribution rale finances the portion of an active members projected benefit allocated
annually; the prior service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded {overfunded) actuarial liabllity (asset) over the
applicable period for that city. Both the normal cosis and prior service contribution rales include recognition
of the projected Impact of annually repeating benefits, such as Updaled Service Credits and Annuily Increases,

The Cily contributes to the TMRS Plan at an acluarially determined rate. Both the employees and the City
make contributions monthly.  Since the Cily needs to know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary
purposes, there is a one-year delay between the acluarial valuation that serves as the basis for the rate and the
calendar year when the rate goes into effect. The annual pension cost and net pension obligation{assel) are as
follows:
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Annual Pension Cost:
Annual required contribution (ARC)

Interest on Net Pension Obligation
Adjusiment to ARC

Annual Pension Cost
Conlributions Made

Increase in nel pension

NPQ at beginning of year

NPO at End of Year

$ 877,179
17,824
(15,646)
679,157
(673,328)
5,829

254,411

s___260240

The required contribution rates for fiscal year 2013 were determined as part of the December 31, 2010 and 2011
actuarial valuations. Addilional information as of the latest actuarial valuation, December 31, 2012, also follows:

Acutuarlal Valuation Date

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Remaining Amortization Perlod
Amortization Period for new

Gains/Losses

Asset Valuation Method

Investment Rate of Refurn

Projected Salary Increases

inflation Rate

Cost of Living Adjustments

1273110 12131711 12131112
Projecled Unit  Projected Unit  Projected Unit
Credit Credit Credit
Level Percent Level Percent Levei Percent
of Payroll of Payroli of Payrolf
27.3 years: 26.4 years: 25.4 years:

closed period

30 years
10-year
Smoothed
Market
7.0%

Varies by age
and service

3.0%

2.1%
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closed perlod

30 years
10-year
Smoothed
Market
7.0%

Varies by age
and service

3.0%

2.1%

closed period

30 years
10-year
Smoothed
Market
7.0%

Varies by age
and service

3.0%

2.1%



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Funding Status and Funding Progress:

The funding status as of December 31, 2012, the most recent actuarial vaiuation date, is as follows:

Actuartal Valuation Date 1231112
Actuarial Value of Assets 17,585,134
Actuarial Accrued Liability 21,103,497
Percentage Funded 83.3%
Unfunded (Over-funded) Actuarial Accrued
Liability (UAAL) 3,518,363
Annual Covered Payroll 4,654,360
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 75.6%
Trend Information for the Plan:
Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pensicn of APC Penslon
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
09/30/11 $ 784,961 85.13% % 116,741
09/30/11 719,061 95.60% 147,073
09/30H2 679,157 99.43% 260,240
Schedule of Funding Progress:
UAAL as a
Actuarial  Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Annual Percenlage
Value Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assets Liabillty(AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
12131110 14,763,503 $ 18,263,261 $ 3,499,758 80.84% 4,372,266 80.0%
1213111 16,183,038 19,865,789 3,682,751 81.46% 4,476,201 82.3%
12134112 17,585,134 21,103,497 3,518,383 83.33% 4,654,360 75.6%

The City also participates in the cost sharing muitiple-employer defined benefit group-term life insurance plan
operated by the Texas Municipal Relirement System (TMRS) known as the Supplemental Death Benefifs Fund

{SDBF).
retired employees.

The Cily may terminate coverage
adopling an ordinance before November 1 of any year fo be effective the following January 1.

The City elected, by ordinance to provide group-term life insurance coverage to both curreni and
under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by

The dealh benefit for active members provides a lump-sum payment approximalely equal lo the employee's annual
salary (calculaled based on the employee's actual earnings, for the 12-month period preceding the month of death);

retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an "other postemployment benefit " or OPER. "
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M.  Heailth Care Coverage

During the year ended September 30, 2013, employees of the Cily were covered by a heaith insurance plan ({the
Plan). The City paid premiums of $413 per month per employee and dependents to the Plan. Employees, at their
option, authorized payroll withholdings to pay premiums for dependents. Al premiums were paid to a third party
administrator, acting on behalf of the licensed insurer. The Plan was authorized by Arlicle 3.51-2, Texas Insurance
Code and was documented by contractual agreement.

The contract between the City and the third parly administrator is renewable October 1, 2013, and terms of coverage
and premium costs are Included in the contractual provisions.

N.  Post Empioyment Bengfils Other Than Pensions

Health Care Benefil Eligiblity Conditions:
Before 4/24/2001 - Refirement from City, employee eligible for health insurance, Cily pays 100% of premium,
After 4/24/2001 - Retirement with ten years of service with the City of Rockport a retiree is ellgible for 50% of the
premium.  The percentage of premium pald Increases annually and at twenty years of service eligible for 100% of
premium. If refiring after April 24, 2001, they must enroll for this coverage within thirty days of retiremant.
At age 65 must apply for Medicare and City furnishes a Medicare Supplemental Policy
Health Care Benefit Provided by the Plan
Member: Medical
Spouse: NIA
Dependen  N/A
Early Ref] Ben
Health Care Benefit Eligibility Conditions
Before 4/24/2001: Retirement from City, employee eligible for heallh insurance, Cily pays 100% of premium,
After 4/24/2001: Retirement with ten year of service with the City of Rockporl eligible for 50% of premium. The
percentage of premium paid increases annually and at fwenly years of service eligible for 100% of premium. If

retiring afler Aprit 24, 2001, they must enroll for this coverage within thirly days of their retirement. At age 65 must
apply for Medicare and Cily furnishes a Medicare Supplemental Policy.

ealth Care B Provi

Member: Medical
Spouse: NIA
Dependen  N/A
Deferred Retirement Beneflts
None.
Duty and Non-Duly Death In Service Relirement Bepefits
None.

Duty Disabled Relirement Benefits
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Health Care Benefit Eligibility Conditions

Before 4/24/2001: Retirement from City employee sligible for health insurance, City pays 100% of premium,

After 4/24/2001: Relirement with ten year of service with the City of Rockport eligible for 50% of premium.  The
percentage of premium paid increases annually and at twenty years of service eligible for 100% of premium. If
retiring after April 24, 2001, they must enroll for this coverage within thily days of their retirement. At age 65, the
reliree must apply for Medicare and City furnishes a Medicare Supplemental Policy,

Health Care Benefit Provided by Plan
Member:  Medical

Non-Duty Disabled Retirement Benefits

Health Care Benefil Eligibiiity Conditions

Before 4/24/2001: Retirement from City employee eligible for health insurance, City pays 100% of premium.

After 4/24/2001: Retirement with ten year of service with the Cily of Rockport eligible for 50% of premium. The
percentage of premium paid increases annually and af twenly years of service refirees are eligible for 100% of
premium. If retiring after April 24, 2001, they must enroll for this coverage within thirly days. At age 65 must apply

for Medicare and City furnishes a Medicare Supplemental Policy.

eal a e Provide P
iMembaer: Medical

Benefils for Spouses of Relired Employess
Benefits are paid by the retiree
- ica d -Eligible is
At age 65 musl apply for Medicare and City furnishes a Medicare Supplemental Policy.
isi oV e
Benefits are paid by retiree
Denlal C a
Benefits are paid by retiree
Life Insura Coverage
The Cily of Rockport provides $2,000 basic life insurancs for refirees.
No dependent life Is covered by the Clty of Rockport.

Reliree Opt-Out
N/A
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ding P OPERB Cos

The Cily's annual other post employment benefits (OPEB) cost Is calculated based on the annual required
contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameter of GASB
Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of accrual thal is projected to recognize the normal cost each year
and to amorlize any unfunded actuarial liablilties {or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The
City had its OPEB acluarial valuation perormed for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2011 as required by GASB
and is required fo have addilienal valuations every three years. The annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year ending

September 30, 2013 was determined as follows:

Annual required conlribution $ 366,401
Interest on OPEB obligation 10,992
Adjustment fo ARC (10,992)
Annual OPEB cost {(expense end of year) 366,401
Net employer contributions (pay as you go) {168,095)
Increase in net OPEB 197,406
Net OPEB cbligation - as 09/30/12 1,239,418
Nel OPEB obligation (asset)- as of 08/30/13 $ 1,436,824

The and of year net OPEB obligation is shown as a non-current liabifity on the Government-wide Statement
of Net Assets in the Governmental Governmental Activilies.

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed lo the ptan, and ne! OPEB oblgation for the
current and two preceeding years were as follows:

Percentage
of GPEB Net
Year Ended Annual GPEB Cost OPEB
September 30 Cost Contributed Obligation
2011 3 468,876 290.76% $ 1,018,943
2012 355,729 35.18% 1,239,418
2013 366,401 46.12% 1,436,824

Eunding slatus_and funding progress

The funded status of the Cily's retiree health care plan, under GASB statement No. 45 as of December 31, 2012,
it's most recent actuarial valuation is as follows:

Actuarial accrued llability (AAL) $ 3,722,633
Acluarial value of assels --
Unfunded AAL(UAAL) $ 3,722,633

unded ratio -
Covered Payrofl $ 4,654,360
UAAL as % of coverad payroll 79.98%

Under the reporting paramelers, the Cily's reliree health care plan Is 0% funded with an estimated actuarial
accrued liability exceeding actuarial assels by $3,722,633 at December 31, 2012.
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c s and i

The Projected Unit credit actuarial cost methed Is used to calculate the GASB ARG for the City's refiree health care
plan. Using the plan benefils, the present health premiums and a set of actuarial assumptions, the anticipated future
payment are projected. The projected unit credit method then provides for a systemalic recognition of the cost of
these anticlpated payments. The yearly ARC is computed to cover the cost of bensfits being earned by covered
members as well as to amortize a portion of the unfunded accrued liabllity.

Projections of health benefits are based on the plan as understood by the City and include the fypes of benefits in
force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing beneflt costs between the City and its employees to that
point.  Actuarial caiculations reflect a long-term perspeclive and employ methods and  assumptions
lhat are designed to reduce shori-lerm volalility In actuarial accrued labilities and the actuarial value of assels.
Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Measurement date December 31, 2014

Actuarial cost method Profected Unit Credit Cost Method
Amortization method Level as a percentage of payroil
Amoriization perlod 30 years, open

Inflation rate 3.0% per annum

Medical inflation : 8.5% initial rate, 4.5% ultimale rate,
Payroll Growth rate 3% annually

Acluarial valuations Involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumplions about the probability of
events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the funded stalus and the annual required contributions of the
City's retiree heaith care plan are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to pasi expectaions and
new estimales are made about the future. The required schedule of funding progress presented as reguired
suplementary Information provides multiyear trend infermation that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assels
is increasing or decreasing over {ime relalive to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

0. Commitments and Contingencles
1.  Contingencies

The Cily participates in grant programs which are governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor
agencies, Costs charged lo the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor
agencies; therefore, to the extent thal the Clly has not complied with the rules and regulalions governing the
granis, refunds of any money received may be required and the collectibility of any related receivable may be
impaired. In the opinion of the Cily, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with
the rules and regulations governing the respeclive grants; therefore, no provislon has been recorded in the
accompanying basic financlal statements for such contingencies,

2, Litigation
No reportable litigation was pending against the Clty at September 30,2013.

P, Eve

No events occurred subsequent to September 30, 2013 that require disclosure in the financial statements. i
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Q.  Prior Period Adjustment

Adjusiment fo Beginning Net Position

Due fo the early implementation of GASB 85, as discussed In Note A, most issuance cosis for debt are no longer
capitalized and amortized but rather expensed as Incurred. This statement, then, requires the removal of deferred
charges for issuance costs previously capitalized and reduces the beginning net position in the amount of $431,697,

Prior Period Adjustments were made as follows:
General Government Activities Fund:
Write off Bond costs in accordance with GASBE 65 $ 246,115
Business Type Aclvities Fund
Water and Sewer Fund
Write off bond costs In accordance with GASB 65 - 256,422
Total GASB 65 502,537
Natural Gas Utility fund
Correclion of prior perid amount, reversal entry
not posted 96,200

$_ 598,737
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

ASSETS

Assets:
Cash and investments

Receivablas ( net of allowances for uncoltectibles):

Other taxes
Accounts
Special assessments
Intergovernmental
Restricted assets:
Cash and investments
Total Assets

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenditures

Due to other funds
Total Liabilities

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Unavailable speclal assessments
Unavailable taxes - Utility Surcharge

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred Qutflows of

Resources

Fund balances:
Nonspendable - deficit
Restricted
Committed
Assigned

Total fund balances

Total Liabilities and Fund balances

Total
Nonmajor
Speclal Capital Governmental
Revenie Projects Funds (See
Funds Funds Exhibit A-3)
738,472 3 266,626 3 1,005,008
224,675 - 224675
15,760 48 15,808
735 6,473 7,208
20,472 469,847 490,419
- - 2,485,232 2,485,232
1,000,114 3,228,326 4,228,440
128,873 $ 35,662 $ 164,535
13,228 - 13,226
48,879 305,680 354,559
190,978 341,342 532,320
735 8,473 7,208
15,760 -- 15,760
16,495 6,473 22,968
207,473 347,815 555,288
{40,670) - {40,670}
824,611 2,505,789 3,330,400
8,700 1,773 10,473
-~ 372,949 372,949
792,641 2,880,511 3,673,152
1,000,114 $ 3,228,326 $ 4,228,440
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES N FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Total
Nonimajor
Speclatl Capital Governmental
Revenue Projects Funds (See
Funds Funds Exhibit A-5)
Revenue;
Taxes $ 898,122 % - $ 898,122
Intergovernmental 387,347 641,108 1,028,455
Fines 17,379 -- 17,379
Interest - 5,381 5,381
Miscellaneous 14,584 -- 14,584
Total revenues 1,317,432 646,489 1,963,921
Expendilures:
Current:
General government 14,139 -- 14,138
Public safety 736,025 - 736,025
Culture and recreation 46,552 - 46,552
Tourlsm 536,505 -- 536,505
Capital outlay - 723,258 723,258
Debt service:
Principal 30,661 - 30,661
Interest and fiscal charges 4,859 -- 4,859
Total expendilures 1,368,741 723,258 2,091,899
Excess (deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures (51,309) (76,769) (128,078)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 476,736 237,680 714,416
Transfers out (42,893} - (42,893)
Total other financing sources (uses) 433,843 237,680 671,523
Net change in fund balance 382,534 160,911 543,445
Fund balance, beginning of year 410,107 2,718,600 3,128,707
Fund balance, end of year % 792,641 $ 2,880,511 3 3,673,152
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

ASSETS

Assels;
Cash and investmenls

Receivables ( net of aliowances for uncollectibles):

Other taxes

Accounts

Special assessments

Intergovernmental
Total Assets

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenditures

Due to other funds
Total Liabilities

Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Unavailable special assessments
Unavailable taxes - Utility Surcharge

Total Deferred Outllows of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred Qutflows of
Resources

Fund halances:
Nonspendable deficit
Restricted
Committed

Total fund balances

Total Liabilittes and Fund balances

Utility Bay Juvenile
Bilk Stonegarden Education Case
Surcharge Grant Center Manager
$ 176,251 & 10,533 § - .
15,760 - - -
- 2,174 . -
192,011 12,707 - =
3 126,400 $ - 870 -
- 4,007 - -
126,400 4,007 870 -
15,760 - N . -
16,760 - - -
142,160 4,007 870 -
- -- {(870) -
49,851 - - -
- 8,700 - —~
49,851 8,700 (870} -
3 192,011 % 12,707 -- -
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City/County
Coniribution Dispatch
Fund Service

$ 280 $ -

280 ) 18,208

- 58,088

. (39,800)

260 {39,800)

280 $ 18298

Public
Access
TV

3 101,146

101,146
101,46

$ 101,146
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HoteliMotel
Occupancy

$ 333,384

224,675

558,059

558,059
558,059

$ 558,059

EXHIBIT B-3
Page 1 of 2

Key Allegro
Properly Impr,

District

232

735

735

735

232

232

967



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

ASSETS

Assetls:
Cash and investments

Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles):

Other taxes

Accounts

Special assessmenis

Intergovernmental
Tolal Assels

Liabifilies:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenditures

Due to other funds
Total Liabilities

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Unavailable special assessments
Unavallable taxes - Utllity Surcharge

Total Deferred Oullliows of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred Quiflows of
Resources

Fund balances:
Nonspendable deficit
Restricted
Committed

Total fund balances

Total Liabilities and Fund balances
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Border
Star
Grant

Child
_ Safely

25

725_



$

Forfeitura

1,528

EXHIBIT B-3

65

Page 2 of 2
Total
Nonmajor
Special
Municipal Court Revenue
Security & Funds (See
Tech. Fund Exhibit B-1)

$ 91,181 $ 738,472
- 224 875

- 156,780

- 735

- . 20,472

91,181 1,000,114

$ 75 $ 128,873
- 13,226
- B 48,879

75 190,978

- 735

-- _ 15,760

- 16,495
75 207 473
-- (40,670)

91,106 824,611

- 8,700

91,108 782,641

$ 91,181 $ 1,000,114



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Utility Bay Juvenile
8ill Stonegarden Education Case
Surcharge Grant Center Manager
Revenue;
Taxes $ 182,920 3% -- $ - -
Intergovernmental -- 98,201 -- -
Fines - - -- 5,072
Miscelianeous -- -- 35 -

Totaf revenues 182,920 98,201 35 5,072

Expenditures:

Current;
General government - -- - 9,936
Public safety 126,400 12,884 -- -
Culture and recreation - - 46,552 -
Tourism - - - --

Debt service:
Principal 30,661 -- - -
interest and fiscal charges 4,859 - - -

Tolal expenditures 161,920 12,884 48,552 9,936

Excess (deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures 21,000 85,317 (46,517) (4,864)
Other financing sources {uses):

Transfers in - -- 45,435 6,348
Transfers out - -- -- --

Totaf other financing sources (uses) - - 45,435 6,348
Nei change in fund balance 21,000 85,317 (1,082) 1,484
Fund batance, beginning of year 28,851 (76,617} 212 {1,484)
Fund balance, end of year $ 49,851 § 8,700 3 {870 --
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
UTILITY BILL SURCHARGE

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Revenue:
Taxes
Tolal reventies

Expenditures:
Current:
Pubtic safety
Debt service:
Princlpal
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess {deficlency) of revenues (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out
Total other financing sources {uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT B-5

Variance with

(GAAP Basis) Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Qriginal Final Aclual {Negative)
$ 167,490 % 167,490 $ 182,920 § 15,430
167,490 167,490 182,820 15,430
123,525 123,525 126,400 (2,875)
30,661 30,661 30,661 -
4,859 4,859 4,859 --
159,045 159,045 161,920 {2,875)
8,445 8,445 21,000 12,555
(8,375) (8,375) - 8,375
{8,375) {8,375) -- (8,375)
70 70 21,000 20,930
24,852 24,852 28,851 3,989
$ 24922 § 24922 % 49851 % 24 929
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS EXHIBIT B-6
CITY/COUNTY DISPATCH SERVICE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
Variance with
{GAAP Basis) Final Budget
Budgeted Amounis Positive

Original Final Actual (Megative)
Revenue:;

Intergovernmental $ 278,306 §$ 278,308 % 255,236 % (23,070)

Miscellaneous -~ - 13,400 13,400
Tolal revenues 278,306 278,308 268,636 {5,670}

Expendifures:
Current;

Public safety 550,204 550,204 556,677 (6,373)
Total expenditures 550,204 550,204 556,577 {6,373)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues (under) expendilures (271,898) (271,898) (287,941) {16,043}

Other financing sources (uses);

Transfers in 271,808 271,898 424,953 163,055

Total other financing sources {uses) 271,898 271,898 424 953 {163,055}
Net change in fund balance - - 137,012 137,012
Fund balance, beginning of year (176,812) {176,812) (176,812) --

Fund balance, end of year $ (176,812) % (176,812) % (38,800) % 137,012

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CiTY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
HOTEL/MOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Revenue:
Taxes
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Tourism
Total expenditures

Excess {deficlency) of revenues (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statemeni.

EXHIBIT B-7

Variance with

{GAAP Basis) Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
3 565,000 % 565,000 $ 668,934 3 133,834
- -- 899 899
565,000 565,000 699,833 134,833
525,750 525,750 536,505 {10,755)
525,750 525,750 536,505 (10,755)
39,250 39,250 163,328 124,078
{42,893) {42,893) {42,893) -
(42,893} (42,893) {42,893) -~
{3,643) (3,643) 120,435 124,078
437,624 437,624 437,624 --
$ 433,981 % 433,981 §% 558,059 % 124,078
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

MUNICIPAL COURT SECURITY & TECHNOLOGY FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

EXHIBIT B-8

Variance with

(GAAP Basls) Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
Revenue: B B

Fines $ 16,000 $ 16,000 $ 8217 § (7,783)

Total revenues 16,000 16,000 8,217 {7,783)
Expenditures:;
Current:

General government 3,200 3,200 4,203 {1,003}
Total expendilures 3,200 3,200 4,203 (1,003)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures 12,800 12,800 4,014 (8,786)

Other financing sources (uses): o .
Total other financing sources (uses) - - -- --
Net change In fund balance 12,800 12,800 4,014 (8,786}
Fund balance, beglnning of year 87,092 87,002 87,092 -
Fund baiance, end of year 3 99,802 $ 09892 §$ 91,106 $ (8,786

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

DEBT SERVICE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Revenus:
Taxes
Interest
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Cursent:
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Bond Issuance cost
Total expenditures

Excess (deficlency) of revenues (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Issuance of certiflcates of obligation
Premium on bonds sold
Interest on bonds sold
Payment to refunding escrow agent
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

The accompanying noles are an integral part of this statement,

EXHIBIT B-9

Variance with

(GAAP Basis) Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Finai Actual {Negative)
$ 2057299 $ 2,057,209 2,080,151 % 2,852
1,000 1,000 646  (354)
2,058,299 2,058,290 2,060,797 2,498
1,083,083 1,083,083 1,181,404 {08,321)
979,625 979,526 824,889 154,636
- - 87,178 {87,178)
2,062,608 2,062,608 2,003,471 (30,863}
(4,309) (4.300) {32,674) (28,365)
42,893 42,893 42,893 --
- - 3,973,888 {3,973,888)
- - 309,072 (308,072)
-- -- 12,409 {12,409)
- -- {4,195,782) (4,195,782)
42,893 42,893 142,480 (99,587}
38,584 38,584 109,806 71,222
341,347 341,347 341,347 -
$ 378931 % 379,931“ $ 451,153 $ 71,222
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

ASSETS

Assels:
Cash and Invesiments

Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibies):

Accounts
Special assessments
Intergovernmental
Restricted assets:
Cash and investments
Total Assets

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Due to other funds
Totatl Liabilities

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Unavailable special assessments
Total Deferrad Qutflows of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred Qutflows of
Resources

Fund balances:
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Tolal fund balances

Total Liabilities and Fund balances

65

Flamingo/
Luau Road
Assessment

3,911

st

—T

$

1,773
1,773

5,684

General
Capital
_improvement

2,562
469,947

472,509

305,680
305,680

2,562
2,562

308,242

164,267

164,267

472,509



$

$

Bay Educalion
Center

Conslruction

20,567

20,557

Vehicle and
Equipment

~ Replacement

$ 244,344

- 208,682
208,682

3 244,344
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2005
Cetlificate of
Obligation

_ 2,485232
2,485,232

2,485,232

2,485,232

T 2,485,232

EXHIBIT B-10

Total
Nonmajor
Capltal
Projects
Funds (See
Exhibit B-1)

$ 266,626

48
6,473
469,947

2,485,232
3,228,326

35,662
305,680
— 2T

6,473
6473

347,815

2,505,789

1,773

372,049
2,880,517

3,228,328




CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Flamingo/
L.uau Road
Assessment
Revenue:
Intergovernmental $ -
interest -
Tolal revenues -
Expenditures:
Current;
Capital outlay -
Tolal expenditures -~
Excess {deficiency) of revenues (under} expenditures --
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in -
Total other financing sources (uses) -
Net change in fund balance -
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,773
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,773
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General
Capital

Improvement

$

641,108

641,108

482,864

482,864

$

158,244

158,244

6,023

164,267



Bay Education Vehicle and
Center Equipment
Construction Replacement
5 - 5 -
- 225
- 225
- 240,394
- 240,394
. {240,169)
- 237,680
-- 237,680
- (2,489)
20,557 211,171

$ 20,557 $ 208,682
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EXHIBIT B-11

Total
Nonmajor
Capital
2005 Projects
Cerlificate of Funds {See
Obligation Exhibit B-2)
- $ 641,108
5,156 5,381
5,156 646,489
- 723,258
-- 723,258
5,156 {76,769)
-- 237,680
- 237,680
5,156 180,911
2,480,076 2,719,600

2,485,232 3 2,880,611



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

ASSETS

Assetls:
Current assels:
Cash and cash equivalents

Recelvables ( net of allowances for uncoliectibles):

Accounts
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Land
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Accumtiated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabillties:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Customer deposits
Total current liabililles -

Noncurrent labilities:
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS:
Investment in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Unrestricted Net Assels

Total Net Assels

Enterprise Enterprise Totat
Fund Fund Nonmajor
Community Enterprise
Sanitation Aquatic Funds (See
Fund Center Exhibit A-8)

$ 246,584 250 $ 246,834
183,016 242 183,258

429,600 492 430,092

- 104,300 104,300

- 1,944,240 1,944,240

- 13,162 13,162
- (787,421} {787.421)

-- 1,274,281 1,274,281
429,600 1,274,773 1,704,373

$ 416,107 3411 $ 419,518
- 2,372 2,372

- 698 698
416,107 6,481 422,588
416,107 6,481 422 588

- 1,274,773 1,274,773

13,493 {5,989} 7,504

$ 13,493 1,268,202 $ 1,281,785
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EXHIBIT B-12



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services
Total Operating Revenuss

OPERATING EXPENSES:;
Personal services
Contractual services
Maintenance
Supplies
Other
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operaling Income (Loss)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Intergovernmental revenue

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Net Income (l.oss) before Operating Transfers

TRANSFERS:
Interfund transfers In
interfund fransfers out
Change in Net Assets

Net Assels, beginning of year

Net Assets, end of year 3

Enterprise Enterprise Total
Fund Fund Nonmajor
Community Enterprise
Sanitation Aquallc Funds (See
Fund Center Exhibit A-9)

16,686 $ 133,706 $ 150,392
16,686 133,708 150,392

-- 144,873 144,873
- 21,851 21,851
- 13,207 13,207
= 87,261 87,261
- 335 335
-- 85,740 65,740
-~ 333,267 333,267
16,686 (199,561) {182,875)

- 42,000 42,000
-- 42,000 42,000
16,686 (167,561) (140,875)

- 80,955 80,955
16,686 {76,608) (59,920)
(3,193} 1,344,898 1,341,705
13,493 $ 1,268,292 5 1,281,785
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EXHIBIT B-14

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Total
Nonmajor
Community Enterprise
Sanitation Aguatic Funds (See
Fund Center Exhibit A-10)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Recelved from Customers $ 14,628 3 133,706 $ 148,335
Cash Receipts (Payments) for Operating
Transactions with Other Funds -~ - --
Cash Payments to Employees - (144,873) {144,873)

Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services -- {112,645) {112,645)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activilles 14,629 (123,812) (109,183)
Cash Flows from Non-capltal Financing Actlvities:

Operating Grants Received - 42,000 42,000

Transfers From Other Funds -- 63,215 83,216

Transfers To Other Funds -- - .
Net Cash Provided {Used) by Non-capital
Financing Activities - 105,215 105,215

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Actlvities:
Proceeds from sale of assets -- - -
Net Cash Provided by Capital & Related Financing

Aclivities -- -- --
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 14,629 {18,597) (3,968)
Cash and Cash Equivalents al Beginning of Year 231,955 18,847 250,802
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 246584 $ 250 3 246,834

Reconciliation of Operafing Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income {Loss) $ 16,686 § (199,561 % (182,875)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation - 65,740 65,740
Change in Assets and Liabilities:

Decrease {Increase) in Receivables (13,447) - (13,447)

Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 11,360 (8,168) 3,222

Increase (Decrease) in Interfund Payables -- 17,740 17,740

increase {Decreass) in Customer Deposits - -- --

Increase (Decrease} in Accrued Expenses - 437 437

Total Adjustments (2,057) 75,749 73,692

Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operating Activities $ 14,629 $ (123,812) $ (109,183)

A



STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Rockport, Texas's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required

supplementary information says about the City's overall financial heaith.

Contenis

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.
Revenue Capacily
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the City's
ability to generate its property and sales taxes.
Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's
current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future.
Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demagraphic and economic indicators to help the reader understand

how the City's financial activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and
with other governments,

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive

annual financial reporis for the relevant year.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
TAX REVENUES BY SOURGCE, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

{MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

TABLE C-6

UNAUDITED
Fiscal Properly Sales & Use Franchise Occupancy Other
Year Tax Tax Tax Tax Taxes Total
2004 $ 2114864 § 1,400,657 $ 567,342 $ 421,125 §$ 148,318 $ 4,652,207
2005 2,180,191 1,624,226 560,227 503,819 158,898 5,037,361
2006 2,451,332 1,718,185 657,606 472,168 170,545 5,469,894
2007 2,793,123 1,714,042 712,156 633,215 175,044 5,627,680
2008 3,455,073 1,842,730 753,400 540,624 164,319 8,756,146
2009 3,837,024 1,726,846 803,466 467,038 180,616 7,014,990
2010 3,996,528 1,737,375 731,683 477,688 217,649 7,180,823
2011 4,011,625 1,799,286 801,629 647,278 180,877 7,440,635
2012 4,152,465 1,929,948 795,072 662,330 178,672 7,718,487
2013 4,380,000 2,051,342 844,466 698,934 199,923 8,174,665

Percent

Change

2004-2013 107.1% 48.5% 48.8% 66.0% 34.8% 75.7%
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGO

UNAUDITED

Taxpayer

QOaks at Beniwater, LP
Wal-Marl Real Estate Bus Tr
Rockport Harborfront, LP

H E Bult Grocery

C H Marina and Drystack LP
Lokseva, Inc

Wal-Mart Slores East #440
Heritage Hotels Rockport LP
Crowley, Christopher

AEP Texas Central Comp
Southwestern Beil Telephone
Bracht Lumber Co., Inc.
Rockbay Properties LTD
Sea Mist, LTD

White Marlin of Rockport LP

Total

Source: Aransas County Appraisal District
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TABLE C-9
2013 2004
Perceniage Percenlage
of Total City of Total City
Taxabte Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Value Rank Value Vaive Rank Value
$ 7,663,730 1 0.5848% $% -- -- --
7,132,010 2 0.5443% - - --
6,062,895 3 0.5314% 4,074,642 2 0.0639%
6,378,066 4 0.4867% 9,301,259 1 0.1195%
5,725,968 5 0.4370% - --
5,513,770 6 0.4208% .- -- --
5,431,319 7 0.4145% 2,638,004 7 0.0326%
4,665,180 8 0.3560% 3,329,770 4 0.0428%
3,675,250 9 0.2805% - -- -
3,465,570 0 0.2645% 3,501,680 3 0.0450%
- - - 2,975,860 5 0.0382%
- - - 2,649,281 B 0.0340%
- -- -- 2,509,850 8 0.0322%
-- . -- 2,402,440 9 0.0309%
- - - 2,301,300 g 0.0296%
$ 66,613,748 43203% §$ 36,484,046 0.4687%
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED

Fiscal
Year

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2008

2010

2011

2012

2013

(1) See the Schedule of Assessed and Estimated Actual Value.
{2) Population data can be found in the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics.

$

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

General Debt Net
Bonded Service Bonded
Debt Funds Debt
12,487,001 271,850 3 12,215,151
11,532,001 277,024 11,809,025
20,540,001 259,152 20,280,849
36,521,001 542,935 35,978,066
35,405,001 365,215 35,039,786
34,282,001. 363,963 33,918,038
43,287,001 203,651 43,580,652
41,345,050 344,532 41,689,582
39,290,062 525,338 39,815,400
36265000 451153 36,716,153

83

Percentage of
Actual Taxable
Value of

Property(1}

1.56%
1.39%
2.13%
3147%
2,88%
2.64%
3.30%
3.05%
2.91%

2.68%

TABLE C-12

Per

Capila(2)

1,442
1,394
2,243
3,884
3,718
3,457
4,442
4,455
4,255

3,924



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
UNAUDITED

Governmental Unif
Debt Repaid With Property Taxes
Aransas County Independent School District
Aransas County
Aransas County Navigalion District
Subtotal, Overlapping Debt
City Direct Debt

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, al least In part, with the geographic boundaries of the Cily.
The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated by the percent of area of each government that

is within the boundaries of the City.

Debt

_Oulstanding

$ 32,275,000
22,463,005

5,180,000

Estimated
Percentage

Applicable

58.490%
56.800%

47.680%

information obtained from entities audited financial statements and Aransas County Appralsal District.
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TABLE C-13

Estimated
Share of
Direct and
Ovaerlapping
Debt

$ 18,877,648
12,758,987
2,469,824
34,106,458
19,297,219

$ 53,403,677
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS TABLE C-17
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

UNAUDITED
2013 2004

Percentage Percentage

of Total Cily of Total City
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Aransas County 1ISD 496 1 - - -- -
Wal-Mart 232 2 - -- - -
Wood Group Production Ser 225 3
H.E.B. 180 4
Aransas County 178 5
City of Rockport 139 8 -- - - -
Stale of Texas 167 7 - - -- --
Rockport Coastal Care Center 80 8
Gulf Polne Plaza 73 9 -- - - -
Oak Crest Nursing Center 70 10
Total 1,780 - - -

Source: Rockport Fulton Chamber of Commerce

Omitted inforimation is not available.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS TABLE C-21
INSURANCE IN FORCE

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

UNAUDITED

POLICY COVERAGE EXPIRATION

Texas Municipal League
Intergovernmental Risk Pool
#9131

Hariford Casually Insurance Company
61BSBANZ2111
61BSBGES563
61BSBGG2972

Fidelity Nalional insurance Co.
421150576270

Texas Windstorm Insurance Assc,
26742911

Real and Personal Property, $24,585,450

Mobile Equipment, $938,876

Errors & Omissions, $2,000,000 occurrence, $4,000,000
annual aggregale

Law Enforcement Liability, $3,000,000 accurrence, $6,000,000
annual aggregate

General Liability, $2,000,000 occurrence, $4,000,000
annual aggregats

Auto Liability, $1,000,000 occurrence, $25,000 Medical

Auto Physical Damage, coverage varles per vehicle

Workers Compensation, limit statutory

Public Employee Dishonesty, $50,000 occurance

Forgery or Alteration, $10,000 occurance

Theft, Disappearance & Destruction, $10,000 occurance

Computer Fraud, $10,000 occurance

Boiler & Machinery, $100,000

Flood-City Hall and contents, $500,000

Fine Arts, 37,400

Public Official Bond, Tax Collector, $50,000
Public Official Bond, City Manger, $60,000
Public Offictal Bond, Finance Director, $50,000

Flood-Bay Education Center, $500,000/$467,000

Windstorm and Hail, $14,820,677
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
SELECTED UTILITY FUND DATA

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
UNAUDITED

Fiscal Year
Ended
_September 30,
2004
2005
20086
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

2013

Water

Conneclions

8,161
8,306
8,747
9,025
89,173
9,410
9,516
9,612
8,742

9,808

Sewer

Connections

3,986
4,129
4,276
4,356
4,433
4,526
4,567
4,615
4,688

4,580

g3

TABLE C-22

Gallons of Water
Consumed

797,799,100
879,564,100
916,721,400
842,145,700
882,252,300
1,073,168,400
1,014,375,681
1,028,847,000
1,009,264,400

962,344,800
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Michael A. Arnold, PLLC

501 E. MARKET CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT PHONE {361) 729-35645
P.O. BOX 1266 FAX (361) 790-9692

ROCKPORT, TEXAS 78381-1268

City Council

City of Rockport, Texas
622 E. Market
Rockport, Texas 78382

Members of the Cily Council:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City
of Rockport, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financiai
statements, which collectively comprise City of Rockport, Texas's basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated February 7, 2014.

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the financial statemenis, we considered City of Rockport, Texas's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Rockport, Texas's internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Cily of Rockport, Texas's internal

control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness Is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Rockport, Texas's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was nof an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The resuits of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal controi and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectiully submitted,

LA dt] -

Michael A. Amoid, PLLC

Rockport, Texas
February 7, 2014
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Michael A, Arnold, PLLC

501 E. MARKET CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT PHONE (361} 728-3545
P.C. BOX 1266 FAX {361) 790-0692

ROCKPORT, TEXAS 78381-1266

City Council

City of Rockport, Texas
622 E. Market
Rockport, Texas 78382

Members of the City Council:
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited City of Rockport, Texas's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of
City of Rockport, Texas's major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2013. City of Rockport,
Texas's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and granis
appliicabie to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Rockport, Texas's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Frofif Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Rockport, Texas's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Rockport, Texas's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, City of Rockport, Texas complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs for the year ended September 30, 2013.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of City of Rockport, Texas is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compiiance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Cily of Rockport, Texas's internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internat control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of City of Rockport, Texas's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A malerial weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that materfal noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiences. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we considered {c be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been Identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully submitted,

T A et P

Michaet A. Arnold, PLLC

Rockport, Texas
February 7, 2014
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

A. Summary of Auditor's Results

1. Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified
Internat control over financial reporting:
One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

One or more significant deficiencies identified that

are not considered o he material weaknesses? Yes X None Reporied

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? : Yes X No

2. Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

One or more significant deficiencies identified that

are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None Repoited

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs: Unmaodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with section 510(a)

of Circular A-1337? _ Yes X No
ldentification of major programs;
CEDA Number{s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.228 Community Development Block Grant
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?  Yes ~ X No

B. Financial Statement Findings
NONE

C. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

NONE
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Management's Explanation
Finding/Recommendation Current Slatus If Not Implemented

N/A
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

N/A
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-Through
Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Entity Identifying
Program Tille Number Number
U.S DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Passed Through Aransas County, Texas:

Operation Stonegarden{OPSG) 97.067 11-SR-48007-01 $

Total U.S Department of Homeland Security

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
Passed Through Texas Department of Transportation:

Coastal Wellands Planning, Protection and Resoration Act 15.614
Total U. 8. Department of the Interior

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Passed Through Texas General Land Office:

Community Development Block Grant * 14.228
Passed Through Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs:
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239

Total U. S. Depariment of Housing & Urban Development
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

* Indicates clustered program under OMB Circular A-133 Compllance Supplement

The accompanying noles are an integral parl of this schedule.
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EXHIBIT D-1

Federal
Expendifures

2,174
2,174

169,034

169,034

12-282-000-5630/Drs210:

1001612

466,801

2,127

469,028

640,236



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of City of
Rockport, Texas and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the general purpose financial
statements.
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